
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AT 2:00 P.M. 

BOARD ROOM 
4594 SAN BERNARDINO STREET 

MONTCLAIR, CA  91763 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Mark Ligtenberg, President  
Kati Parker, Vice President  

Gil Aldaco, Treasurer  
Teri Layton, Director 

Amanda Coker, Director 
Hanif Gulmahamad, Director 
Ryan Sonnenberg, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER LEGAL COUNSEL 

Elizabeth Willis Lee McElhaney 

NOTICES 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Those interested in participating during the Public Comment period or 
public testimony period for Public Hearings of the Board meetings, may do so in person the day 
of the meeting, or by contacting the Administrative Services Manager via email at 
afernandez@cbwcd.org at least two hours prior to the start of the meeting. Speakers will be 
required to sign in and each person’s name will be called in the order received.  

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Chino Basin Water Conservation District complies with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and amendments thereto.  If you require special assistance to 
participate in this meeting or if you desire a copy of the Agenda in an alternate format, please 
contact the District office at (909) 626-2711 at least 72 hours prior to the advertised starting time 
of the meeting. 

AGENDA MATERALS: The agenda and/or agenda packet are available for public inspection at 
District’s website at:  https://cbwcd.org/agendas/.  

1

AMENDED AGENDA 

mailto:afernandez@cbwcd.org
https://cbwcd.org/agendas/


November 13, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4 
 

INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

 In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), a two-thirds vote (or 
unanimous vote if less than two-thirds are present), is required to add an item for action, 
provided that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the agency after the agenda was posted. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. WATERWISE GARDEN & PUMPKIN FESTIVAL – MAIA DEAN, COMMUNITY PROGRAMS 

MANAGER 
 

2. FINAL REPORT ON THE NEW WEBSITE – SCOTT KLEINROCK, CONSERVATION PROGRAMS 
MANAGER 

 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 
This is the time and place for the general public to address the Board of Directors.  Due to Brown 
Act requirements, action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda; however, the Board 
of Directors may refer comments and concerns to staff or request the item be placed on a future 
agenda. In accordance with District Resolution No. 2020-05: Decorum During Public Meetings, 
each speaker shall be allotted five (5) minutes of time to address the Board. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
At this time, members of the public may present testimony as to why an item should be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion.  Unless a member of the public or a Director 
request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, all items will be acted upon as a 
whole and approved in a single motion and vote.  Items removed from the Consent Calendar will 
be acted upon separately. 
 
3. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 9, 2023 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve said minutes 
as is. 

 
4. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the financial 
reports. 

 

2



November 13, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 
 

5. APPROVE AB 1234 DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Director 
Travel, Training, and Meeting Report, reflecting business-related expenses incurred by 
the District. 
 

6. APPROVE AB 1234 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Director 
Compensation and Reimbursement Report. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
7. REPORT ON BOARD WORKSHOP RESEARCH RESULTS 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive staff’s updated 
information and provide direction to staff regarding the Board Workshop research results. 

 
8. APPROVE THE UPDATED BOARD CLERK JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, discuss and 
approve the updated job description for the Board Clerk position.  
 

9. APPROVE POLICY NO. 62 – CALL-BACK PAY AND UPDATED JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 
FACILITIES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, discuss, and 
approve Policy No. 62 – Call-Back Pay and the updated job description for the Facilities 
and Basin Technician. 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 
10. FIRST QUARTER CORRESPONDENCE JULY – SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
11. FIRST QUARTER METRICS FOR JULY – SEPTEMBER 2023 
 
DIRECTOR ORAL REPORTS 
 
This is the time and place for the Board of Directors to report on any items of interest.  Upon 
request by an individual Director, the Board may choose to take action on any of the subject 
matters listed below. 
 
• President Ligtenberg 
 

3



November 13, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4 
 

• Vice President Parker 
 
• Treasurer Aldaco  
 
• Director Layton  
 
• Director Coker 
 
• Director Gulmahamad  
 
• Director Sonnenberg 
 
STAFF ORAL REPORTS 
 
• General Manager/Secretary Report 
 
• Legal Counsel Report 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Legal Counsel shall provide a briefing on the item listed for Closed Session as follows: 
 
12.       CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
KAISER Foundation Health Plan, Inc. et al. vs. Chino Basin Water Conservation District; 
And DOES 1 and through 10, inclusive 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No.: CIVDS 1933655 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The Board of Directors will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting of the Chino Basin Water 
Conservation District on Monday, December 11, 2023, at 2:00 p.m.  
 
I, Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager of the Chino Basin Water Conservation 
District, do hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been posted on or before Thursday, 
November 9, 2023, by 2:00 p.m.  
 
 
_____________________________________________   
Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager 

4



ITEM NO. 03 
 

 

 

 

APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 9, 2023 
 

5



 
 
 

 
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

MONDAY, October 9, 2023 AT 2:00 P.M.  
 

BOARD ROOM 
4594 SAN BERNARDINO STREET 

MONTCLAIR, CA  91763 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Mark Ligtenberg, President  
Kati Parker, Vice President  

Gil Aldaco, Treasurer  
Teri Layton, Director 

Amanda Coker, Director 
Hanif Gulmahamad, Director 
Ryan Sonnenberg, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER  LEGAL COUNSEL 

Elizabeth Willis  Lee McElhaney 
 

INVOCATION –   Director Sonnenberg led the Board with the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE –   President Ligtenberg called the meeting to order at 2:00              
p.m. and led the audience in the flag salute.  
 
ROLL CALL – Board Members present were President Mark Ligtenberg, Vice President Kati Parker, 
Treasurer Gil Aldaco, Directors Teri Layton, Amanda Coker, Hanif Gulmahamad, and Ryan 
Sonnenberg.  
 
General Counsel Leland McElhaney, Esq., General Manager Elizabeth Willis, Conservation 
Programs Manager Scott Kleinrock, Facilities Maintenance Manager Dave Schroeder, Community 
Programs Manager Maia Dean, Landscape Maintenance Worker III James Salcido, Administrative 
Services Manager Alicia Fernandez, Community Programs Educators Billy Mercado, Azucena 
Quinones, Monica Curiel, Facilities & Basins Technician Robert Sotomayor, Landscape 
Maintenance Worker I Luis Holguin, Conservation Technician II George Jimenez, Conservation 
Specialist I Brandon Burgess, and Conservation Technician II Daniel Moreno were present. 
 

6



Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting         Page 2 

ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), a two-thirds vote (or 
unanimous vote if less than two-thirds are present), is required to add an item for action, 
provided that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to 
the attention of the agency after the agenda was posted. 

No changes. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. METRICS PRESENTATION: LANDSCAPE AUDIT, WORKSHOP, GUEST LECTURE, AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS, FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 – SCOTT
KLEINROCK, CONSERVATION PROGRAMS MANAGER

The presentation was received and filed.

2. LOTERIA PROJECT- MONICA CURIEL, PROGRAM EDUCATOR

The presentation was received and filed.

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 

This is the time and place for the general public to address the Board of Directors.  Due to 
Brown Act requirements, action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda; however, 
the Board of Directors may refer comments and concerns to staff or request the item be placed 
on a future agenda. In accordance with District Resolution No. 2020-05: Decorum During Public 
Meetings, each speaker shall be allotted five (5) minutes of time to address the Board. 

None. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
At this time, members of the public may present testimony as to why an item should be pulled 
from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion.  Unless a member of the public or a Director 
request that an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar, all items will be acted upon as a whole 
and approved in a single motion and vote.  Items pulled from the Consent Calendar will be acted 
upon separately. 

A motion was made by Vice President Kati Parker to approve Items No’s. 3-6, seconded by 
Treasurer Gil Aldaco; the motion was approved unanimously. 

7



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 3 
 
 

3. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve said minutes 
as is. 
 
Approved unanimously. 
 

4. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR AUGUST 2023  
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the financial 
reports. 
 
Approved unanimously. 
 

5. APPROVE 1234 DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Director 
Travel, Training and Meeting Report, reflecting business-related expenses incurred by the 
District. 
 
Approved unanimously. 
 

6. APPROVE 1234 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Director 
Compensation and Reimbursement Report. 
 
Approved unanimously. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
7. APPROVE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) NO. 2023-02 FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING 

SERVICES FOR AN AMPHITHEATER ROOF, ENHANCEMENT, AND RECLADDING 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, discuss, and 
approve RFP No. 2023-02 for Design and Engineering Services for An Amphitheater Roof, 
Enhancement, and recladding. 
 
General Manager Elizabeth Willis presented the staff report to the Board and explained 
the benefits of recladding and enhancing the existing amphitheater, with the presumption 
that construction begins within the first quarter of 2025.  
 

8



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 4 
 
 

Director Teri Layton inquired about the current seating capacity, to which Ms. Willis 
responded with the added value of a fourth row. 
A motion was made by Treasurer Aldaco to approve the item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Director Sonnenberg. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco suggested that the stucco be included in the scope of services. Ms. Willis 
confirmed that it was already a concern that was to be addressed by District staff prior to 
construction. The scope of services itself includes recladding. 
 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

8. REPORT ON MONTCLAIR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PILOT EVENT: “NIGHT UNDER THE 
STARS” 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file staff’s 
report on the District’s pilot evening event and provide feedback and direction on their 
own perspectives on the event which can be incorporated into a future Facility Use Policy.  
 
General Manager Elizabeth Willis presented the staff recommendation and feedback from 
the pilot evening event. Staff recommended appointing/assigning a single member of staff 
as a representative to tend to the event holder’s needs. The appointed representative will 
be tasked with performing a walk-through with the event holder, no later than two weeks 
before the event, to ensure details and all documents are finalized. Among the 
recommendations it was noted that events that require furniture rearrangement should 
not be scheduled the day before or after a Board meeting to guarantee the Facilities 
Department ample time to move furniture. Lastly, Staff also recommended that a 
refundable deposit and the number of events be limited to safeguard the District’s 
Mission. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco suggested improving the existing audiovisual system. 
 
President Ligtenberg expressed concern about utilizing staff in lieu of security. He 
articulated that it could put staff in a challenging position. 
 
Vice President Parker sought confirmation that the facility use policy that is being 
recommended is intended to encompass solutions for future events. 
 
As a result, from the Board’s feedback, a Facility Use Policy and application process will be 
drafted.  
 
 
 

 

9



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 5 
 
 

9. NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR BROOKS BASIN FENCING  
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, discuss and 
approve the release of the Notice Inviting Bids for Brooks Basin Fencing Project. 
Facilities Maintenance Manager Dave Schroeder presented the staff report to the Board. 
Mr. Schroeder remarked that Montclair’s City Planning office preferred the decorative iron 
fencing to be built along Brooks Street in an effort to deter vandalism and trespassing.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco motioned to approve release of the Notice Inviting Bids for Brooks Basin 
Fencing. The motion was seconded by Director Layton. 
 
Members of the Board expressed interest in the feasibility of the proposed fence and the 
involvement of United Pacific Railroad (UPRR).   
 
Director Coker suggested Dave speak with the UPRR and in the interim the 170’ of 
ornamental fencing be amended as an optional bid item to be better informed on the cost.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco amended his motion to include Director Coker’s recommendation to 
make the 170’ fencing along the railroad an optional bid item, allowing time to review and 
consider the costs prior to awarding the project, the motion was seconded by Director 
Coker. 
 
Director Coker inquired if there were any gates. Mr. Schroeder confirmed that there were 
five gates included in the specifications for the project. Ms. Coker then confirmed that the 
optional bid items to be amended were items 5 & 7.  
 
President Ligtenberg inquired if Director Layton was in support of Director Aldaco’s 
amended motion; she was in support.  
 
President Ligtenberg changed the original motion to amend bid items 5 & 7 as optional 
bid items.  
 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

10. APPROVE AUTHORIZATION FOR TRUCK PURCHASE 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve authorization 
for the purchase of a truck for the District’s fleet of vehicles from MK Smith Chevrolet, 
the lowest responsive bidder, and approve an expenditure in the amount of up to $66,000 
for that purpose. 
 
General Manager Elizabeth Willis presented the staff report to the Board and contesting 
market vehicle options and final selection of the MK Smith Chevrolet. District Staff sought 

10



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 6 
 
 

approval in the efforts of allotting more time to build the infrastructures needed to 
become compliant with the California Air Resources Board’s Advanced Clean Fleet 
regulation. 
 
Vice President Parker motioned to approve the item as recommended by staff; Director 
Layton seconded the motion.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco inquired about vehicle usage and asked clarifying questions regarding 
the vehicle specifications. Mr. Schroeder acknowledged that usage varied depending on 
daily tasks and the proposed vehicle met the versatility needs to accomplish those tasks.  
 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
11. APPROVE THE YOUTH PROGRAMS TEACHING ASSISTANT JOB DESCRIPTION AND 

REVISED CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the amended 
job description and revised Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024 Classification and Compensation 
Schedule that includes the position update from 
 
A motion was made by Vice President Parker to approve the item as recommended by 
staff, seconded by Director Layton; the motion was approved unanimously. 
 

12. CONSIDERATION OF PURCHASE OF WATER FOR REPLENISHMENT INTO THE CHINO 
GROUNDWATER BASIN AS PART OF THE DROUGHT PIGGY BANK PROGRAM 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors direct staff to not 
purchase water during the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year. 
 
General Manager Elizabeth Willis presented the staff report to the board.  
 
Vice President Parker expressed her utmost support in the purchase of water. She 
motioned the purchase of 500-acre feet of untreated MWD water from Three Valleys for 
a total of $ 436,000.000; Treasurer Aldaco seconded. 
 
Director Layton expressed concerns about purchasing water at this moment and inquired 
about possible hidden fees and/or incurring higher future fees, as well as accessibility to 
the purchased water. Treasure Aldaco and Directors Coker and Gulmahamad were in 
support of Director Layton’s suggestion.  Director Gulmahamad suggested that the Board 
reconsider this item at a future meeting. 

 
The motion failed.  
 

11



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 7 
 
 

MOVED: Parker SECONDED: Failed: 1-5-1-0 
 

AYES: Parker  
NOES: Ligtenberg, Aldaco, Layton, Coker, Gulmahamad 
ABSTAIN: Sonnenberg 
ABSENT: None 

 
DIRECTOR ORAL REPORTS 
 
This is the time and place for the Board of Directors to report on any items of interest.  Upon 
request by an individual Director, the Board may choose to take action on any of the subject 
matters listed below. 
 
President Ligtenberg – None. 
 
Vice President Parker – Ms. Parker attended meetings as itemized in Item 5- AB 1234 of the 
Agenda.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco – Mr. Aldaco reported he took part in the California Nevada Drought Early 
warning system. He touched on the forecasts that were mentioned during the webinar. 
 
Director Layton – Ms. Layton attended meetings as itemized in Item 5- AB 1234 of the Agenda.  
 
Director Coker – Ms. Coker suggested a brief presenation on the plans for the Confluence 
Project. She expressed her excitement and complemented the artwork for the Loteria event. 
 
Director Gulmahamad – Mr. Gulmahamad attended meetings as itemized in Item 5- AB 1234 
of the Agenda. He praised the staff on the educational benefits of the Leak Repair workshop 
he attended on 9/16.  
 
Director Sonnenberg – Mr. Sonnenberg commended the staff on the Waterwise Garden & 
Pumkin Fest. 
 
STAFF ORAL REPORTS 
 
General Manager/Secretary Report – Ms. Willis also attended the State of the County event. She 
commended staff on Waterwise Garden & Pumkin Fest. She reminded the Board of the Loteria 
event in November. 
 
• Legal Counsel Report – None 

 
President Ligtenberg recessed the meeting to Closed Session at 4:15 p.m. 
 

12



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
2023109 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 8 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION  
 
Legal Counsel shall provide a briefing on the item listed for Closed Session as follows: 
 
13. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
        Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 

KAISER Foundation Health Plan, Inc., et al. vs. Chino Basin Water Conservation District; 
and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No.: CIVDS 1933655 
 

14. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
Cari McCormick vs. California Public Employees’ Retirement System 

 
President Ligtenberg reconvened the regular Board meeting at 5:02 p.m. 
 
Legal Counsel Leland stated that there was no reportable action taken. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
President Ligtenberg adjourned the meeting at 5:02 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting of 
the Chino Basin Water Conservation District to be held on Monday, November 13, 2023, at 2:00 
p.m. at District Headquarters, located at 4594 San Bernardino Street, Montclair, CA 91763. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 13TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2023 
 
     
 
            

Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
         
Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager 

13



14



ITEM NO. 4 
 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR SEPTEMBER 2023 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



ITEM NO. 5 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 

FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 

BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager    

SUBJECT: AB 1234 – DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT 

   

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Director Travel, Training, and Meeting 
Report, reflecting business-related expenses incurred by the District. 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with Assembly Bill 1234 (AB 1234), effective January 1, 2006, members of the 
Board of Directors are required to provide a brief report on meetings attended at the expense of 
the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body. 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 

In response to AB 1234, a Board of Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report has been 
created and is placed on the Board Agenda Consent Calendar monthly. It provides the required 
brief report on meetings that Board members attended in October 2023. 

DATE  EVENT  BOARD MEMBER 
10/07/23 Waterwise Garden & Pumpkin Fest President Mark Ligtenberg 

Treasurer Aldaco 
Directors Layton, Coker, Gulmahamad, 
and Sonnenberg 

10/09/23 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors 

President Mark Ligtenberg 
Vice President Parker 
Treasurer Aldaco 
Directors Layton, Coker, Gulmahamad, 
and Sonnenberg 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

None. Anticipated Director attendance and associated expenses are included in the Fiscal Year 
Budget. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

None 

31



32



ITEM NO. 6 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager   
   
SUBJECT: AB 1234 – COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Compensation and Reimbursement 
Report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Per Policy 47, dated November 9, 2020, “Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and 
Ethics Training”, Exhibit A, Category C reflects the following: 
 
CATEGORY C – Meetings at Partner Organizations 
 

At the beginning of each Fiscal Year, Board Members will vote on assignments for attendance at 
meetings of each organization listed below to ensure broad, diverse, and consistent District 
representation at such events. A primary and alternate will be chosen. If the primary and 
alternate members designated are both unable to attend, another member may be later 
designated for this purpose. At events considered to be of particular importance, multiple 
directors may be authorized to attend. Compensation and reimbursement for attendance at 
Category C meetings may be approved post-attendance on the Board’s consent calendar.  
 

a. Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) 
b. Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts (ASBCSD) 
c. California Groundwater Coalition (CGD) 
d. California Special Districts Association (CDSA) 
e. Cal Trust 
f. Chino Basin Watermaster 
g. Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) 
h. Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) 
i. Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) 
j. Joint Powers Authority (JPIA) 
k. LAIF 

33



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

l. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
m. Metropolitan Water District (MWD) 
n. Monte Vista Water District 
o. Southern California Water Committee (SCWC) 
p. Southern California Storm Water Taskforce 
q. Southern California Recycled Water Taskforce 
r. Urban Water Institute (UWI) 
s. Water Education Foundation (WEF) 
 

Please refer to Policy No. 47 for further information. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Below is a list of events attended by specified Board Members:   
 

DATE EVENT BOARD MEMBER 
10/02/23 Montclair Council Meeting, Announcement 

of Annual Fair  
Vice President Parker 

10/16/23 ASBCSD Board Meeting  Vice President Parker 

10/23/23 –
10/25/23 

SDLA Leadership Academy President Ligtenberg 
 

10/23/23 ASBCSD Membership Meeting Vice President Parker 
Directors Layton, Gulmahamad 
General Manager Willis 
 

10/26/23 
 

TVMWD Leadership Breakfast Vice President Parker 
Director Gulmahamad 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. Anticipated Director attendance and associated expenses are included in the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
None 

34



ITEM NO. 7 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
   
SUBJECT: REPORT ON BOARD WORKSHOP RESEARCH RESULTS 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive staff’s updated information and provide 
direction to staff regarding the Board Workshop research results. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
On March 13, 2023, the Board held a “Board Priorities Workshop” facilitated by Yesmean Rihbany 
of The Rihbany Group. Staff presented on the District’s progress over the past four years since 
the last Board Priorities Workshop in April 2019. Staff presented the Board with options for 
District direction and action in five strategic priorities: 
 

1. Primary Scope of Services: Exploring new ways to increase infiltration into the Chino 
Groundwater Basin 

a. Water Bank/Storage – 6 votes 
b. New Recycled Waterline to Brooks Basin – 5 votes 
c. Work with MWD – 5 votes 

 
2. Secondary Scope of Services: Developing a culture of water conservation in the 

community 
a. 75th Anniversary – 8 votes 
b. Increase Walk-In Visitors – 7 votes 
c. Waterwise Nursery – 5 votes 

 
3. Increase Visitors to Campus: Improving the facility to draw more visitors and support. 

a. Natural playground in the Wilderness Park – 8 votes 
b. Rain shelter for amphitheater – 5 votes 
c. Children’s garden in education courtyard – 5 votes 

 
4. Staff Focus: Continuing to cultivate a positive work environment, including a focus on 

culture and staff development. 

35



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

a. Focus on a positive culture – 9 votes 
b. Creating visible pathways for Advancement – 5 votes 
c. Knowledge transfer – 3 votes 

 
5. Board Focus: Exploring outreach to other agencies and increase visibility in the 

community. 
a. Identify ways to help staff achieve their goals. 
b. Focus on elected-to-elected outreach. 

 
The Board had an opportunity to ask questions, discuss options, and use a multi-dot voting 
system to identify priorities. Each member of the Board was given stickers representing dots and 
stars. Dots could be used only in one strategic priority. Three stars could be used across all 
categories to identify the actions or direction that each Board Member found most important.  
 
Once votes were cast, the Board had a chance to discuss the results priority by priority and 
explore and confirm the choices of the group. The next course of action was for staff to research 
the options identified, including costs and feasibility.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
At this time, staff will present their results for costs and feasibility of the priorities identified by 
the Board. The Board will have the opportunity to provide further feedback and direction given 
the results of the staff’s research. Once the final tactics are selected, staff will create an action 
plan with dates and budgets for the Board to adopt, while simultaneously moving forward with 
the items identified as priorities.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The fiscal impact of moving forward with the plan in its entirety is impossible to determine at this 
time. However, decisions on next steps will not have an immediate fiscal impact. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
1. Chino Basin Water Conservation District Board Priorities Report – May 2023 

36



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report on 2023 Board Priorities Workshop 

 
 

  

37



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 1 

Table of Contents 
Workshop Overview ....................................................................................................................... 2 

CBWCD’s Mission and Vision .......................................................................................................... 3 

External Forces Shaping Actions ..................................................................................................... 3 

District Guiding Principles ............................................................................................................... 4 

Current Programs and Accomplishments ....................................................................................... 4 

Strategic Priorities and Tactics ........................................................................................................ 7 

Next Steps—Implementation Process .......................................................................................... 11 

Appendix A—Priority Voting Method and Results ....................................................................... 12 

  

38



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 2 

Workshop Overview 
The Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) held a Board workshop on March 13, 2023, 
at the Waterwise Community Center in Montclair to identify the District’s priorities for the next 
three years. This report presents a summary of the workshop. 

Workshop Objectives 
 Focus on the District’s mission statement. 
 Provide a shared and compelling vision to provide clarity and inspiration to the Board. 
 Create a distinct and well-understood strategy to allow the Board to consider the 

allocation of limited resources and align with the District’s vision and strategy. 

Workshop Outcome 
 Define strategies and tactics for CBWCD priorities over the next three years. 

Workshop Participants 
 Gil Aldaco, Director 
 Amanda Coker, Director 
 Hanif Gulmahamad, Director 
 Teri Layton, Director 
 Mark Ligtenberg, Director 
 Kati Parker, Director 
 Ryan Sonnenberg, Director 
 Dave Schroeder, Facilities & Operations Manager 
 Scott Kleinrock, Conservation Programs Manager 
 Maia Dean, Community Programs Manager 
 Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 Lee McElhaney, District Counsel 
 Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator 
 Yesmean Rihbany, The Rihbany Group, Facilitator 
 Shirley Miller, The Rihbany Group, Recorder 

Workshop Preparation 
To prepare for an effective event, surveys and discussions were conducted prior to the workshop 
to gather input on priorities for the next three years. 

 Board members and District staff members completed anonymous electronic surveys. 
 With input from staff and the Board, the Leadership team held two in-person meetings to 

synthesize and formulate initial recommendations for the Board’s consideration. 

The resulting input was consolidated to guide the workshop’s agenda and discussions. 

39



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 3 

CBWCD’s Mission and Vision 
During the workshop, the organization’s mission and vision were reviewed. 

OUR MISSION 

• Protecting and replenishing our regional groundwater supply since 1949. 

OUR VISION 

• Ensuring our community understands the true value of water and uses it wisely in every 
home, every business, and every neighborhood, while expanding our local water supply 
through basin recharge. 

OUR COMMUNITY 

 Providing programs, services, and resources to serve audiences of all ages to cultivate a 
community-wide conservation ethic and build regional capacity for water resilience. 

External Forces Shaping Actions 
Elizabeth Skrzat presented an overview of the external forces shaping the future of the CBWCD. 

Wide Lens Issues 
California water crisis: Climate change is reducing both our snowpack and each snowpack’s runoff 
(or yield), which is reducing the overall supply of water available for cities and farms.  

 “Aridification of the West”—megadrought in 
Western states  

 Delta Tunnel/Conveyance 

 Sikes Reservoir 

 “California Water Fix” 

 Colorado River Negotiations and threat of 
“deadpool” 

 State Regulations: “Make Conservation a 
California Way of Life”—AB 1668/SB 606 

 State-imposed housing obligations, which 
require water service 

Local Issues 
 Development of the Chino Basin Program  

 Chino Basin Watermaster 

 Desalter Replenishment Obligations 

 Met Pure Water Program 

U.S. Drought Monitor, January 24, 2021. 

40



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 4 

 Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 

District Guiding Principles 
The Guiding Principles provide a foundation for all strategic priorities as well as direction for the 
Board’s and staff’s ongoing focus. The following principles were based on Board input and 
approved by the Board during the workshop. 

 We highly prize good relationships with our regional partners and the community we 
serve. 

 We seek to grow our influence and impact in a fiscally responsible manner. 

 We seek to address California’s water crisis through growing our local water supply and 
decreasing our local water demand while growing our voice in the water industry. 

 We will continue to cultivate a positive work environment and protect our culture in 
which our team feels valued and engaged. 

Current Programs and Accomplishments 
Presentations on current projects and programs were made by the following staff members: 

 Dave Schroeder, Facilities & Operations Manager 

 Scott Kleinrock, Conservation Programs Manager 

 Maia Deen, Community Programs Manager 

CBWCD Major Accomplishments in the Past Two Years 
1. Construction of the Montclair Basin No. 2 Spillway 
with grants from the Metropolitan Stormwater Pilot 
Project and the County of San Bernardino’s American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding. 

  

2. Launch of the Groundwater and Sustainability Basin 
Tour Program, which has educated local elected officials 
about our local water infrastructure and the critical role 
the Chino Groundwater Basin plays in our communities’ 
water security and drought resiliency. 

 

3. Reconstruction of the Waterwise Garden Planner 
(formerly the Inland Valley Garden Planner) to be more 
user friendly for people interested in landscape 
transformation. 

  

      2023. 

41



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 5 

5. “Dig It: Garden Planner Launch Party,” held on March 17, 2022, which connected the District’s 
new resources to local elected officials in city, county, and special districts within the service 
area. This event brought many local officials and high-ranking staff to District headquarters 
for the first time. 

6. Creation of the Landscape Design Templates with eight (8) unique styles fit to four (4) sizes of 
yards commonly found in the District’s service area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Completion of the Interpretive Signage Project, replacing all the damaged and outdated signs 
in the Waterwise Demonstration Garden and Wilderness Park with signs that reflect the 
District’s updated branding and updated recommendations for waterwise gardens and 
landscape transformation. The project includes links to more resources online and integration 
with the Waterwise Garden Planner. Signs were fully installed in April 2023. 

8. Launch of Online Workshops for Waterwise Gardening during the COVID-19 pandemic, which 
resulted in a large increase in attendees from previous in-person numbers. The increase was 
due in part to greater accessibility and to unprecedented interest in gardening during 
pandemic “stay at home” orders. 

9. Creation of long form “how to” videos posted on the District’s YouTube channel for 
constituents engaged in DIY landscape transformation projects. These videos have received 
excellent feedback. 

  

Landscape Design Template as featured on the newly redesigned “Waterwise Garden Planner” website. 

42



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 6 

10. Fully online field trip programs offered to school children in the service area during online 
schooling. Rather than show a PowerPoint presentation to the students, the District took the 
camera outside into the Waterwise Demonstration Garden and Montclair Basin No. 4 to teach 
about ways the District captures water and infiltrates it into the Chino Groundwater Basin, 
and how to best use that water in everyday life. 

11. Rewrote and launched the District’s curriculum for the Field Trip Program with Next 
Generation Science Standards (NGSS) with subject matter tailored to transitional kindergarten 
(TK) through sixth grade, middle school, and high school. Each grade level has two lesson 
plans tied to NGSS science standards for that grade, one for indoors and one for outdoors. 
Every lesson plan touches on water, from the water cycle to groundwater to the ecology of 
native and waterwise gardens. 

12. Increased visitation post-COVID. The District chose to increase accessibility by opening garden 
“emergency exit” gates as new entrances, which has drawn more visitors to the garden. 
However, staff cannot capture true numbers as many people choose the garden entrance, 
which is not staffed. However, observations point to a higher number of visitors and 
increased phone traffic. 

13. Renamed the “Landscape & Water Conservation Festival” to the “Waterwise Garden & 
Pumpkin Fest,” and implemented social media ads and mailers to promote it. Visitation 
increased 10% despite the festival being cancelled for two years due to COVID-19. 

  

43



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 7 

Strategic Priorities and Tactics 
The five strategic priorities serve as the foundation for the District’s focus. During the workshop, 
the Board used a priority voting method as well as discussion to identify key tactical actions that 
would be CBWCD’s focus for the next three years. See Appendix A for the priority voting method 
and results. 

District staff will research the potential tactics identified by the Board to determine the costs, 
benefits, and feasibility for successfully implementing each tactic, and will present final 
recommendations. 

1. Primary Scope of Services: Explore new ways to increase infiltration into the Chino 
Groundwater Basin 

Purpose: Infiltrate water into the Chino Groundwater Basin. 

Key Tactical Actions 

 Water bank (or storage account)  

− Purchase water from outside the area. 

− Bring it here using the Rialto Feeder and OC-
59 Connector. 

− Infiltrate into our basins. 

− Create a storage account with Watermaster. 

− Store for later sale to producers inside the 
Chino Basin. 

 Build another recycled water line into the State Street Channel to raise the water level in 
Brooks Basin. 

 Purchase land to develop more basins. (There is a limited window to implement this 
option near the Cucamonga Creek.) 

 Work with Metropolitan Water District (MWD) to develop recharging infrastructure. 

Additional Tactics for Consideration 

 Explore opportunities to fill Montclair Basins with advanced treated water. 

 Develop injection wells. 

 Implement dry well installation program. 

  

44



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 8 

2. Secondary Scope of Services: Develop a culture of water conservation in the community 

Purpose: Align with our vision of helping our community use water wisely in every home, 
every business, and every neighborhood. 

Key Tactical Actions 

 Create the “Waterwise Community Nursery.”  

 Create an online guide to landscape transformation. 

 Increase walk-in visitors per year (defined as visitors 
who are not attending an organized event on 
campus). 

 75th Anniversary: Prepare and launch a 75th Anniversary 
Year in 2024 which tells the District’s story, highlights 
the District’s legacy, and elevates the District’s profile in 
the service area. 

Note: The staff determined that all secondary scope actions 
can be done in parallel within the next five years. 

3. Increase Visitors to Campus: Improve facility to draw more visitors and build support 

Purpose: Create an engaging and inviting experience for constituents of all ages. 

Key Tactical Actions 

 Create a family-friendly experiential opportunity that 
will increase visitation and engagement with District 
programming, such as the importance of our water 
supply, how to use water wisely, and waterwise non-
lawn options. 

 Build a rain shelter over the amphitheater to 
accommodate rainy day field trips without using the 
Board Room. 

 Design and build a natural playground in the 
Wilderness Park to draw visitors and showcase how 
landscaping can use less water, while adding value. 

 Create a Children’s Garden in the education courtyard to allow children to learn about 
water, infiltration, and native landscapes. The Garden would include hands-on outdoor 
activities in a safe environment and parents can relax and enjoy watching their children 
discover how to conserve water. 

  

Proposed 
Nursery 
Location 

45



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 9 

Additional Tactics for Consideration 

 Re-imagine the landscape of the Wilderness Park to make it more closely resemble a 
wilderness park. 

 Purchase land to expand the District’s main campus. 

 Create hands-on, experiential lobby exhibits that tell the story of the Chino Groundwater 
Basin, groundwater recharge, and watershed science. 

 Work with local instructors to offer contract classes in the garden such as yoga, Zumba, tai 
chi, painting, or other garden-related activities that will drive visitation. 

 Allow two to four local community-based organizations to host fundraisers in the 
Waterwise Demonstration Garden to attract new visitors to District Headquarters. 

4. Staff Focus: Continue to cultivate a positive work environment, including a focus on culture 
and staff development 

Purpose: Increase staff engagement and continue to cultivate a positive workplace culture. 

Key Tactical Actions 

 The General Manager will explore the following tactics and bring recommendations and 
actions to the Board. 

− Define success for retention: Research appropriate turnover rates in local 
government, special districts, and the water industry to determine reasonable 
employee turnover rates. 

− Update compensation strategy: Articulate and adopt a well-defined compensation 
philosophy. 

− Advancement: Explore creating a visible and flexible career path that allows hourly 
employees to see a possibility for advancement among several levels within the hourly 
labor grades. 

− Culture focus: Continue to cultivate a culture in which employees feel they are a 
valued member of a team working to achieve a common purpose. 

Additional Tactics for Consideration 

 The General Manager will explore the following tactics and bring recommendations and 
actions to the Board. 

− Benefits: Explore non-monetary benefit options that would increase employee 
satisfaction. 

− Knowledge transfer: Create a culture that values transition and knowledge transfer 
planning. Such a tactic would require the Board to direct resources to occasional and 
temporary redundancies in staffing and allow for staff time to be spent on this pursuit.  

46



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 10 

5. Board Focus: Explore outreach to other agencies and visibility in the community 

Purpose: Leverage connection and visibility. 

Key Tactical Actions 

 Identify ways to help the staff achieve their goals. 

 Focus on elected-to-elected outreach; create a strategy to identify and cultivate key 
relationships to support the District’s mission. 

Notes 

 During the discussion that followed the priority voting, the Board acknowledged the 
issues related to compensation days and Policy 47. 

 The Board decided to focus on creating a strategy to identify and cultivate key 
relationships to support the District’s mission. 

 In addition, they thought it was important for Board members to speak at city council 
and school board meetings but decided not to have formal assignments based on 
division locations, but rather to allow more flexibility based on the Board members’ 
availability. 

Additional Tactics for Consideration 

 Assign Board members to speak at council and school board meetings. 

 Change Policy 47 to widen the breadth of allowable meetings or events to accommodate 
increased outreach. 

 Consider adopting an ordinance to increase the number of allowable days of service from 
six per month to ten per month. 

 Hold an annual Board/staff breakfast. 

 Provide an orientation for new Board members. 

  

47



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 11 

Next Steps—Implementation Process 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Board participates in a 
workshop and identifies 
potential priorities and 

tactics  
(March 13th) 

Workshop report is 
created and presented to 

the Board for adoption 
(May 2023) 

Staff research to assess costs, 
benefits, and feasibility for 

each tactical priority  
(June–Sept 2023) 

Board and staff select 
final tactics for 

implementation  
(Nov 2023) 

Staff reports findings 
to the Board for 

review and discussion  
(Oct 2023) 

Staff prepares an Action 
Plan to implement the 

tactical priorities  
(Dec 2023) 

48



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 12 

Appendix A—Priority Voting Method and Results 

Priority Voting Method 
The Board used a voting and discussion process to select the highest priorities and tactical 
actions. The process steps were the following: 

 Each person received 10 votes (stickers). 

 The potential tactics for each priority area were listed on flip charts. 

 Participants placed up to two votes for each tactic they felt would best serve the District. 

 Participants placed a gold star on the tactics they viewed as most important. 

 The voting results were discussed to confirm understanding and alignment. 

 Decisions were made by consensus. 

Priority Voting Results 
1. Primary Scope of Services: Exploring new ways to increase filtration into the Chino 

Groundwater Basin 

Item Description Notes Dots Stars 

1 Water bank/storage  3 3 

2 Recycled waterline/Brooks Basin  4 1 

3 Purchase land for basins Limited window of time 0 0 

4 Advanced treated water  2 0 

5 Injection wells  2 0 

6 Sources of stormwater Explore after Item 2 0 0 

7 Work with MWD  5 0 

8 Dry well installation  1 0 

 

  

49



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 13 

2. Secondary Scope of Services: Developing a culture of water conservation in the community 

Item Description Notes Dots Stars 

1 Waterwise Nursery Explore zoning requirements 5 1 

2 Organized Guide  1 0 

3 Walk-in visitors  6 1 

4 75th Anniversary To be done throughout 2024 
with a January kickoff. All staff 
will be involved in creating the 
anniversary. 

6 2 

Note: All secondary scope items can be done in parallel, and all can be done within the next five 
years. 

 

3. Increase Visitors to Campus: Improve facility to draw more visitors and build support 

Item Description Notes Dots Stars 

1 Rain shelter  5 0 

2 Natural Playground in the 
Wilderness Park 

 5 3 

3 Children’s Garden in the education 
courtyard 

 3 2 

4 Woodland Walk  2 0 

5 ADA compliant deck  2 0 

6 Re-imagining Wilderness Park  0 0 

7 Expand property Expand parking 0 0 

8 No item (numbering error)  - - 

9 Lobby exhibition  1 0 

10 Contract classes  3 0 

11 Venue for fundraisers Test case in August 2 1 

Note regarding this category: Staff members need to develop a comprehensive facility use plan 
that may combine some of these tactics. 

 

  

50



 

CBWCD Board Report April 24, 2023 P a g e  | 14 

4. Staff Focus: Continuing to cultivate a positive work environment, including a focus on 
culture and staff development 

Item Description Notes Dots Stars 

1 Define success * 0 0 

2 Compensation focus * 0 0 

3 Benefits * 2 0 

4 Advancement Explore ways to make work 
more enjoyable. 

4 1 

5 Knowledge transfer  2 1 

6 Culture  5 4 

* Items 1, 2, and 3 need the General Manager to explore options and make recommendations. All 
three items need Board guidance and approval. 

 

5. Board Focus: Exploring outreach to other agencies and visibility in the community 

Item Description Notes Dots Stars 

1 Assign board to speak at city council 
and school board meetings 

This is our responsibility/our 
job. Don’t assign; some people 
have more flexibility. 

0 0 

2 Connect with elected officials/ 
others/businesses 

 2 0 

3 Change Policy 47 This comes after Item 4. 1 1 

4 Increase allowable comp days This is already in the works. 2 1 

5 Ways to help staff achieve their 
goals 

What do you need from the 
Board on this? 

6 1 

6 Annual all staff/Board breakfast  1 1 

7 Board orientation This is important, but not 
urgent. Can be done later. 

1 1 

 

51



52



ITEM NO. 8 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
   
SUBJECT: APPROVE THE UPDATED BOARD CLERK JOB DESCRIPTION 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, discuss and approve the updated job 
description for the Board Clerk position. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
On April 11, 2022, the Board reclassified the Senior Administrative Assistant position at Labor 
Grade 126 as the Board Clerk position at Labor Grade 138 to be in line with the salaries that Board 
Clerks at water agencies, special districts, and municipalities were commanding in San Bernardino 
County. The role of Board Clerk is highly valued and highly translatable across many types of 
government agencies, which allows skilled Board Clerks to move easily between government 
agencies and fed the increase in Board Clerk compensation locally. The compensation adjustment 
in 2022 was appropriate and it is not necessary to revisit salary at this time.  
 
The District’s Board Clerk position recently became vacant. Staff recommends tightening the job 
description at this time to attract the best possible candidates for the position and discourage 
candidates who do not have the correct qualifications for the position.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The suggested changes to the job description include listing the core responsibilities of the Board 
Clerk in a more explicit and concrete manner in the “Summary/Objective” section and in the 
“Essential Functions” section, adding contract management, which is typically the function of a 
clerk position, and listing the “processing of payroll” rather than the “calculation of payroll,” now 
that the District uses a third-party vendor to calculate payroll. Staff believes that the verb 
“processes” is both more accurate and more likely to attract a person with a solid set of clerk 
skills who might be intimidated by the idea of calculating of payroll, or who might be simply 
uninterested in the task.  
 

53



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: November 13, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

The other duties more explicitly outlined include records management, processing public record 
requests, posting notices in accordance with legal requirements, and acting as the District’s Filing 
Officer for the Fair Political Practices Commission, to name a few items. All of these items have 
been expected of the Board Clerk in the past, but they were not explicitly laid out in the job 
description. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
1. Board Clerk Job Description – Redline  
2. Board Clerk Job Description – Final  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



POSITION BOARD CLERK/ADMINISTRATIVE COORDINATOR 

SALARY GRADE 138  

CLASSIFICATION Full-Time, 40 hours per week, Non-exempt under the Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FSLA). 

DATE 04/11/2022 11/13/23 

ABOUT THE DISTRICT 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) is recognized throughout the state as an 
innovative, energetic, and effective water conservation organization.  The District is dedicated 
to the protection of the Chino Groundwater Basin to ensure that the current and future water 
needs of the region will be met.  Its core business is two-pronged: (1) increase water supply 
through groundwater percolation; and (2) decrease water demand through conservation 
education, workforce training, and services. The District provides programs, services, and 
resources to audiences of all ages and backgrounds to cultivate a community-wide 
conservation ethic and build regional capacity for water resilience. 

ABOUT THE DEPARTMENT 
The Administrative Services Department works with the General Manager on the business and 
personnel functions of the District. 

Administrative Services: 

• Is responsible for District financial activities, including budget and expenditures,
inventory, audits, investments, and payroll;

• Oversees human resources functions, including classification and compensation,
recruitment and selection, performance appraisals, personnel records, and staff
development and education;

• Administers benefits programs and risk management;
• Oversees safety programs and protocols;
• Is responsible for District Records, including Resolutions, Board and committee

agendas, meeting materials and minutes, and public records requests;
• Coordinates Board and committee meetings;
• Maintains and coordinates review of District policies with District counsel for

compliance with federal, state, and local laws and advises staff on applicable policies;
• Oversees information technology;
• Provides support to the Board of Directors; and
• Oversees procurements, contracts, and agreements.

ATTACHMENT 1

55



ABOUT THE POSITION 
 
SUMMARY/OBJECTIVE 
The Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator position answers directly to the Administrative 
Services Manager and is responsible for and performs all functions necessary for the efficient 
operations of the Clerk of the Board office. general administrative support to the Board of 
Directors, General Manager, and District management/staff.  

 
Under general supervision, provides highly responsible and complex administrative support to 
the Board of Directors, General Manager, and District management/staff; performs complex 
and responsible secretarial, administrative support, and general clerical  Clerk of the Board 
duties, including preparation of Board/Committee agenda packets, minutes, actions, 
ordinances, resolutions, records management, and overseeing the election and redistricting 
process; of a complex legal nature; performs contract management; calculates processes 
payroll; and performs other related duties as required. 

 
The Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator is the main support to the Board of Directors, 
schedules Board, Committee, and Ad-Hoc meetings, handles Director calendars, and tracks 
Director compensation. This position requires occasional Saturday work to assist with special 
events, as needed. for staff coverage when the building is open to the public during the 
weekend.  
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
 
Board Support: 

• Coordinates with Board Members and management staff to schedule Board, and 
Committee, and Ad-Hoc meetings.  

• Prepares public notifications, agenda packets, and other documents. 
• Coordinates and participates in preparation and dissemination of agendas and 

agenda packets to the Board of Directors, legal counsel, and staff.  
• Proofreads and checks the agenda and agenda packets for accuracy and 

completeness prior to printing and publication; formats agenda packets for posting 
to the web. 

• Posts notices for Board and Committee meetings in person and online in compliance 
with the Brown Act, including Notifies notifying interested persons of the time, place, 
and subject of Board and Committee meetings. 

• Attends Board and Committee meetings and records all official proceedings. , takes 
meeting minutes, and prepares minutes for publication. 

• Writes meeting minutes for all Board and Committee meetings and prepares for 
publication. agenda packets and is responsible for compiling Consent Calendar and 
Informational Items. 

• Proofreads and checks materials for accuracy, completeness and compliance with 
Board standards, policies, and procedures.  

• Prepares meeting materials, PowerPoint presentations, documents, and reports, 
including those of confidential nature. 

• Prepares power point presentations for Board and Committee meetings by working 
with staff in multiple departments to compile several presentations into one final 
document.  

• Runs A/V equipment, power point presentations, and audio recordings during public 
meetings. 

Attachment 1

56



• Drafts and arranges for the legal publication of notices, postings, ordinances, and 
public hearings. 

• Assists with the dissemination and processing of all actions including ordinances, 
resolutions, contracts, agreements, and deeds. 

• Handles contract management, including ensuring materials, contracts, insurance, 
and reports for signature are accurate and complete. Obtains signatures, sends 
documents to third parties, and files fully executed documents appropriately, both 
digitally and in hard copy. 

• Administers the public hearing process for Board meetings; coordinates public 
notices in accordance with government code requirements and legal deadlines.  

• Oversees the District-wide records management program and directs the retention 
and destruction of official records in accordance with applicable laws and regulations; 
assists with developing and updating records retention schedules, policies, and 
procedures; and researches documents, historical information, and other information 
as needed. 

• Responds to public record requests in compliance with the Public Records Act.  
• Prepares and maintains a procedures manual for the Board Clerk’s office and review 

and recommend work products, methods, and procedures. 
• Assists with preparing and updating the District’s conflict of interest code and serves 

as Filing Officer for the Fair Political Practices Commission. 
• Receives and opens sealed bids and formally releases bid bonds.  
• Receives, processes, and maintains claims, summonses, and complaints. 
• Oversees codification of ordinances. 
• Transcribes motions, seconds, and votes during Board and Committee meetings. 
• Assists with maintenance of Board records.  

 
Financial Support: 

• Prepares Processes and submits bi-weekly payroll.  
• Processes benefits related payments, including to CalPERS. 
• May assist with the budget preparation for the Board Clerk office as it relates to 

training, equipment, materials, and supplies. 
 

Scheduling: 
• Maintains the appointment calendar for the Board of Directors and the General 

Manager. Schedules appointments and meetings as requested both internally and 
externally. 

• Receives invitations from external organizations for District leadership attendance at 
community and professional events, forwards invitations to appropriate leadership 
and RSVPs on their behalf; maintains Board event calendar. 

• Arranges travel accommodations for District Directors, General Manager, and 
management staff in accordance with District Policy. 

 
Regulatory Support: 

• Assist with tracking and compliance of local, state, and federal laws pertaining to 
public records, Board and Committee meetings, ethics, and Board elections.  

• Organizes and maintains files in compliance with applicable governmental laws and 
regulations.  
 

General Administrative Support: 
• Prepares and processes correspondence and routine administrative reports.  
• Responds to public records requests. 

Attachment 1

57



• Responds to inquiries from staff and the public regarding matters pertaining to 
Board actions and/or related information retained in the Administrative Services 
Department. 

• Researches and assembles information from multiple sources for inclusion in reports 
and other work products.  

• Maintains administrative files and databases for legal documents, archival materials, 
resolutions, ordinances, minutes, agreements, and contracts; assists with records 
retention, which may include document imaging.  

• Maintains all asset records.  
• Responsible for tracking Bonding of Directors and Staff. 
• Provides front desk coverage.  
• Assists as backup support with opening/closing procedures and front desk coverage 

in the absence of the Administrative Assistant I/II. 
• Assists customers at the front counter during front counter desk duty or as needed.   
• Performs other duties as required. 

 
COMPETENCIES 

Knowledge and Experience  
• Expertise in Microsoft Office products, including Word/Excel/PowerPoint/Outlook/ 

Teams/SharePoint is required.  
• Expertise in Adobe Acrobat. 
• English usage, spelling, vocabulary, grammar, and punctuation. 
• A minimum of 2-5 years of progressive administrative experience directly related to 

the primary duties and essential functions specified, preferably with a Board 
Clerk/City Clerk’s office. public agency.  

• Research and reporting methods, techniques, and procedures. 
• Records management principles, procedures, and practices. 
• Experience with election procedures, including the re-districting process. 
• Experience in Knowledge of laws and procedures relating to the Brown Act, Public 

Records Act, Political Reform Act, and Fair Political Practices Commission 
requirements is highly desirable, but not required.  

• General knowledge of Board governance and ethics, and local government 
regulations.  

• Knowledge of District policies, procedures, and related legal requirements.  
 
Skills  

• Strong interpersonal, collaborative, organizational, time management, problem-
solving, and customer service skills. 

• Strong technical skills.  
• Exceptionally detail-oriented, with superb organizational skills.  
• Keen eye for typos, formatting, and other mistakes on written materials. 
• Strong techniques for record keeping and report preparation and writing.  
• Proper English, spelling, and grammar. 
• Basic principles of mathematics.  
• Bilingual Spanish language skill is desirable, but not required. 

 
Abilities  

• Learn, interpret, and apply District and department rules, regulations, policies, 
practices, ordinances, resolutions, and laws. 

• Plan and coordinate complex administrative programs. 
• Coordinating on-going District-wide records clean-up. 

Attachment 1

58



• Ability to work independently. 
• Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those 

contacted in the course of work. 
• Communicate effectively, both orally and in written form, with proper English usage.  
• Independently prepare correspondence and memorandums. 
• Understand and carry out oral and written directions.  
• Interact professionally with other employees, customers, consultants, the public, and 

vendors.  
• Perform quality work within deadlines without direct supervision.  
• Gather data, compile information, and prepare reports.  
• Operate and troubleshoot standard office equipment systems and software (copier, 

fax, printers, computers, web-based software/applications), and including Board 
room audio-video equipment.  

• Perform mathematical calculations quickly and accurately. 
• Maintain confidentiality and be discreet in handling and processing confidential 

information and data. 
 
SUPERVISION   
Receives general supervision from the Administrative Services Manager. The incumbent in 
this position does not routinely exercise supervision. 
 
POSITION TYPE AND EXPECTED HOURS OF WORK 

• Full-Time, Non-Exempt, Hourly.  
• The standard work schedule is Monday – Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. five days 

each week  
• This position requires periodic evenings and occasional Saturday weekend work to 

assist with special events, as needed. 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE  

• Minimum High School Diploma or GED is required supplemented by college level 
coursework in business administration, public administration, or other related 
specialized training. A Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university is 
highly desirable.  

• Any recent training such as academic courses and certification programs, which are 
relevant to this job classification. Certification as a Municipal Clerk (CMC) by the 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks is highly desirable. 

• Minimum of 2-5 years of progressive administrative support experience directly 
related to the primary duties and essential functions specified, preferably with a 
Board Clerk/City Clerk’s office. public agency.  

 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 

• Standard office setting.  
• Frequent interaction with staff and public. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

• Work at a desk and sit for an extended time periods.  
• Sitting for extended time periods. 
• Position requires prolonged sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, 

kneeling, bending, and stooping in the performance of daily activities. 
• Requires grasping, repetitive hand movement and fine coordination in preparing 

reports using a computer keyboard. 

Attachment 1

59



• Sufficient finger/hand coordination and dexterity to operate and adjust office 
equipment.  

• Regular use of telephone for communication.  
• Use of office equipment such as computers, copiers, and fax machines.  
• Good judgment involving safe and proper work procedures and the order in which 

assignments are completed. 
• Work in an office environment, need to lift, and move, drag, and push objects such as 

large binders, books, boxes, office equipment, files, computer reports, or other 
materials weighing up to 25 pounds. 

• Intermittently kneel, bend, squat and carry items, for brief to moderate durations of 
up to 5 minutes. 

 
ADDITIONAL ELIGIBILITY QUALIFICATIONS 

• Strong computer skills using Microsoft products. 
• Possession of a valid California Class C Driver’s License and proof of a good driving 

record as evidenced by freedom from multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents 
for at least two (2) years duration. 

 
OTHER DUTIES 

• Some limited local driving is involved. 
• Performs other duties as assigned.  

 
 

Attachment 1

60



POSITION BOARD CLERK 

SALARY GRADE 138  

CLASSIFICATION Full-Time, 40 hours per week, Non-exempt under the Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FSLA). 

DATE 11/13/23 

ABOUT THE DISTRICT 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) is recognized throughout the state as an 
innovative, energetic, and effective water conservation organization.  The District is dedicated 
to the protection of the Chino Groundwater Basin to ensure that the current and future water 
needs of the region will be met.  Its core business is two-pronged: (1) increase water supply 
through groundwater percolation; and (2) decrease water demand through conservation 
education, workforce training, and services. The District provides programs, services, and 
resources to audiences of all ages and backgrounds to cultivate a community-wide 
conservation ethic and build regional capacity for water resilience. 

ABOUT THE DEPARTMENT 
The Administrative Services Department works with the General Manager on the business and 
personnel functions of the District. 

Administrative Services: 

• Is responsible for District financial activities, including budget and expenditures,
inventory, audits, investments, and payroll;

• Oversees human resources functions, including classification and compensation,
recruitment and selection, performance appraisals, personnel records, and staff
development and education;

• Administers benefits programs and risk management;
• Oversees safety programs and protocols;
• Is responsible for District Records, including Resolutions, Board and committee

agendas, meeting materials and minutes, and public records requests;
• Coordinates Board and committee meetings;
• Maintains and coordinates review of District policies with District counsel for

compliance with federal, state, and local laws and advises staff on applicable policies;
• Oversees information technology;
• Provides support to the Board of Directors; and
• Oversees procurements, contracts, and agreements.

ATTACHMENT 2

61



ABOUT THE POSITION 
 
SUMMARY/OBJECTIVE 
The Board Clerk position answers directly to the Administrative Services Manager and is 
responsible for and performs all functions necessary for the efficient operations of the Clerk of 
the Board office.  

 
Under general supervision, provides highly responsible and complex administrative support to 
the Board of Directors, General Manager, and District management/staff; performs Clerk of the 
Board duties, including preparation of Board/Committee agenda packets, minutes, actions, 
ordinances, resolutions, records management, and overseeing the election and redistricting 
process; performs contract management; processes payroll; and performs other related duties 
as required. 

 
The Board Clerk is the main support to the Board of Directors, schedules Board, Committee, 
and Ad-Hoc meetings, handles Director calendars, and tracks Director compensation. This 
position requires occasional Saturday work to assist with special events, as needed.  
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
 
Board Support: 

• Coordinates with Board Members and management staff to schedule Board, and 
Committee, and Ad-Hoc meetings.  

• Prepares public notifications, agenda packets, and other documents. 
• Coordinates and participates in preparation and dissemination of agendas and 

agenda packets to the Board of Directors, legal counsel, and staff.  
• Proofreads and checks the agenda and agenda packets for accuracy and 

completeness prior to printing and publication; formats agenda packets for posting 
to the web. 

• Posts notices for Board and Committee meetings in compliance with the Brown Act, 
including notifying interested persons of the time, place, and subject of Board and 
Committee meetings. 

• Attends Board and Committee meetings and records all official proceedings.  
• Writes meeting minutes for all Board and Committee meetings and prepares for 

publication.  
• Proofreads and checks materials for accuracy, completeness and compliance with 

Board standards, policies, and procedures.  
• Prepares meeting materials, PowerPoint presentations, documents, and reports, 

including those of confidential nature. 
• Runs A/V equipment, power point presentations, and audio recordings during public 

meetings. 
• Drafts and arranges for the legal publication of notices, postings, ordinances, and 

public hearings. 
• Assists with the dissemination and processing of all actions including ordinances, 

resolutions, contracts, agreements, and deeds. 
• Handles contract management, including ensuring materials, contracts, insurance, 

and reports for signature are accurate and complete. Obtains signatures, sends 
documents to third parties, and files fully executed documents appropriately, both 
digitally and in hard copy. 

• Administers the public hearing process for Board meetings; coordinates public 
notices in accordance with government code requirements and legal deadlines.  

• Oversees the District-wide records management program and directs the retention 
and destruction of official records in accordance with applicable laws and regulations; 
assists with developing and updating records retention schedules, policies, and 

ATTACHMENT 2

62



procedures; and researches documents, historical information, and other information 
as needed. 

• Responds to public record requests in compliance with the Public Records Act.  
• Prepares and maintains a procedures manual for the Board Clerk’s office and review 

and recommend work products, methods, and procedures. 
• Assists with preparing and updating the District’s conflict of interest code and serves 

as Filing Officer for the Fair Political Practices Commission. 
• Receives and opens sealed bids and formally releases bid bonds.  
• Receives, processes, and maintains claims, summonses, and complaints. 
• Oversees codification of ordinances. 

 
Financial Support: 

• Processes and submits bi-weekly payroll.  
• Processes benefits related payments, including to CalPERS. 
• May assist with the budget preparation for the Board Clerk office as it relates to 

training, equipment, materials, and supplies. 
 

Scheduling: 
• Maintains the appointment calendar for the Board of Directors and the General 

Manager. Schedules appointments and meetings as requested both internally and 
externally. 

• Receives invitations from external organizations for District leadership attendance at 
community and professional events, forwards invitations to appropriate leadership 
and RSVPs on their behalf; maintains Board event calendar. 

• Arranges travel accommodations for District Directors, General Manager, and 
management staff in accordance with District Policy. 

 
Regulatory Support: 

• Assist with tracking and compliance of local, state, and federal laws pertaining to 
public records, Board and Committee meetings, ethics, and Board elections.  

• Organizes and maintains files in compliance with applicable governmental laws and 
regulations.  
 

General Administrative Support: 
• Prepares and processes correspondence and routine administrative reports.  
• Responds to inquiries from staff and the public regarding matters pertaining to 

Board actions and/or related information retained in the Administrative Services 
Department. 

• Researches and assembles information from multiple sources for inclusion in reports 
and other work products.  

• Maintains administrative files and databases for legal documents, archival materials, 
resolutions, ordinances, minutes, agreements, and contracts; assists with records 
retention, which may include document imaging.  

• Maintains all asset records.  
• Responsible for tracking Bonding of Directors and Staff. 
• Assists as backup support with opening/closing procedures and front desk coverage 

in the absence of the Administrative Assistant I/II. 
• Assists customers at the front counter during front counter desk duty or as needed.   
• Performs other duties as required. 

 
COMPETENCIES 

Knowledge and Experience  

ATTACHMENT 2

63



• Expertise in Microsoft Office products, including Word/Excel/PowerPoint/Outlook/ 
Teams/SharePoint is required.  

• Expertise in Adobe Acrobat. 
• English usage, spelling, vocabulary, grammar, and punctuation. 
• A minimum of 2-5 years of progressive administrative experience directly related to 

the primary duties and essential functions specified, preferably with a Board 
Clerk/City Clerk’s office.  

• Research and reporting methods, techniques, and procedures. 
• Records management principles, procedures, and practices. 
• Experience with election procedures, including the re-districting process. 
• Knowledge of laws and procedures relating to the Brown Act, Public Records Act, 

Political Reform Act, and Fair Political Practices Commission requirements is highly 
desirable. 

• General knowledge of Board governance and ethics, and local government 
regulations.  

• Knowledge of District policies, procedures, and related legal requirements.  
 
Skills  

• Strong interpersonal, collaborative, organizational, time management, problem-
solving, and customer service skills. 

• Strong technical skills.  
• Exceptionally detail-oriented, with superb organizational skills.  
• Keen eye for typos, formatting, and other mistakes on written materials. 
• Strong techniques for record keeping and report preparation and writing.  
• Proper English, spelling, and grammar. 
• Basic principles of mathematics.  
• Bilingual Spanish language skill is desirable, but not required. 

 
Abilities  

• Learn, interpret, and apply District and department rules, regulations, policies, 
practices, ordinances, resolutions, and laws. 

• Plan and coordinate complex administrative programs. 
• Coordinating on-going District-wide records clean-up. 
• Ability to work independently. 
• Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those 

contacted in the course of work. 
• Communicate effectively, both orally and in written form, with proper English usage.  
• Independently prepare correspondence and memorandums. 
• Understand and carry out oral and written directions.  
• Interact professionally with other employees, customers, consultants, the public, and 

vendors.  
• Perform quality work within deadlines without direct supervision.  
• Gather data, compile information, and prepare reports.  
• Operate and troubleshoot standard office equipment systems and software (copier, 

fax, printers, computers, web-based software/applications), and including Board 
room audio-video equipment.  

• Perform mathematical calculations quickly and accurately. 
• Maintain confidentiality and be discreet in handling and processing confidential 

information and data. 
 
SUPERVISION   
Receives general supervision from the Administrative Services Manager. The incumbent in 
this position does not routinely exercise supervision. 

ATTACHMENT 2

64



 
POSITION TYPE AND EXPECTED HOURS OF WORK 

• Full-Time, Non-Exempt, Hourly.  
• The standard work schedule is Monday – Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
• This position requires periodic evenings and occasional Saturday work to assist with 

special events, as needed. 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE  

• Minimum High School Diploma or GED is required supplemented by college level 
coursework in business administration, public administration, or other related 
specialized training. A Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university is 
highly desirable.  

• Any recent training such as academic courses and certification programs, which are 
relevant to this job classification. Certification as a Municipal Clerk (CMC) by the 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks is highly desirable. 

• Minimum of 2-5 years of progressive administrative support experience directly 
related to the primary duties and essential functions specified, preferably with a 
Board Clerk/City Clerk’s office.  

 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 

• Standard office setting.  
• Frequent interaction with staff and public. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

• Work at a desk and sit for an extended time periods.  
• Position requires prolonged sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, 

kneeling, bending, and stooping in the performance of daily activities. 
• Requires grasping, repetitive hand movement and fine coordination in preparing 

reports using a computer keyboard. 
• Sufficient finger/hand coordination and dexterity to operate and adjust office 

equipment.  
• Regular use of telephone for communication.  
• Use of office equipment such as computers, copiers, and fax machines.  
• Good judgment involving safe and proper work procedures and the order in which 

assignments are completed. 
• Work in an office environment, need to lift, move, drag, and push objects such as large 

binders, books, boxes, office equipment, files, computer reports, or other materials 
weighing up to 25 pounds. 

 
ADDITIONAL ELIGIBILITY QUALIFICATIONS 

• Possession of a valid California Class C Driver’s License and proof of a good driving 
record as evidenced by freedom from multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents 
for at least two (2) years duration. 

 
OTHER DUTIES 

• Some limited local driving is involved. 
• Performs other duties as assigned.  

 
 

ATTACHMENT 2

65



66



ITEM NO. 9 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

DATE: November 13, 2023 

FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 

BY: Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVE POLICY NO. 62 – CALL-BACK PAY AND UPDATED JOB DESCRIPTION FOR 
THE FACILITIES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN  

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, discuss, and approve Policy No. 62 – Call-
Back Pay and the updated job description for the Facilities and Basins Technician. 

BACKGROUND 

The District’s Facilities and Operations Department provides continuous service to manage and 
maintain its facilities. From time to time, during the evenings or weekends, employees from the 
Facilities & Operations Department are needed to perform duties during the off hours, such as 
managing and monitoring basins during storm events, handling security issues or vandalism on 
District property, or responding to the District’s security alarms sounding on campus.  

Usually these duties are handled by the Facilities & Operations Manager, who is a full-time, 
exempt, salaried employee. However, there are times when the manager is not available, and it 
is unwise to rely on only one person for after-hours response. Therefore, it is necessary for certain 
non-exempt employees to respond to any reasonable after-hours request for duty. Some 
employees may be required, as a condition of their employment, to be asked to return to work 
in excess of their regular schedule in order to physically respond to after-hours emergencies, 
service calls, or facility alarm calls. The most common after-hours call is for a facility alarm being 
triggered, which can happen in any of the three main buildings on campus.  

Non-exempt employees who are called back to return to work after they have worked a full day 
are currently receiving compensatory pay for actual hours worked or a minimum of two hours, 
whichever is greater, which is best practice and in accordance with California law. However, to 
date, the District has had no formal policy codifying the existing practice, and staff recommends 
adopting the policy to ensure consistency into the future. 

67



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Currently the District doesn’t have a policy that clearly defines what call-back pay is, who it 
applies to, how and when an employee is compensated, and when an employee is required to 
respond to any after-hour inquiries. While managers are, as a rule, called first to respond to after-
hours issues, at times, non-exempt employees may also receive after-hours calls or texts with 
questions, or asked to report physically to District property to handle an issue. Employees have 
been unclear about how or where to record that time as hours worked outside of simply adding 
the hours to their time sheets.  
 
Establishing a call-back policy will clearly advise employees but will also motivate employees to 
respond promptly to after-hours or emergency situations, recognize and compensate employees 
for their additional time and effort, and ensure fairness and equity in compensation practices. 
The policy will also require employees to use a daily tracking log to record any after-hour calls 
and/or texts that they respond to. This log will allow the District to properly track potential costs 
associated with responding to after-hours calls, texts, or requests to return to work.  
 
Responding to call-backs is a requirement for select employees of the Facilities and Operations 
department, specifically the Facilities and Basins Technician position. The job description for this 
position currently requires the employee to be available for emergency callouts 24 hours a day, 
7 days a week, which is considered “on-call” pay. During times when employees are subject to 
the employer’s control, on-call or standby time at the work site is considered hours worked; 
therefore, employees must be compensated for this time even if they don’t do anything. 
Consequently, Staff recommends that Facilities and Basins Technician job description be updated 
to eliminate the requirement of being available for emergency callouts 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week; and clarify the language to state that the employee shall respond in accordance with the 
District’s Call-Back Pay Policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact is associated with adopting the Call-Back Policy. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
1. Policy No. 62 - Call-Back Pay 
2. Facilities and Basins Technician Job Description – Redlined 
3. Facilities and Basins Technician Job Description – Final  

 
 
 
 

68



ATTACHMENT 1 
Policy No.: 62 [NEW SUGGESTED POLICY]  
Issue No.:  1 
Effective Date: 11/13/23 
Subject: Call-Back Pay for Non-Exempt Employees 

Policy No. 62 – Call-Back Pay for Non-Exempt Employees 

Purpose: To provide call-back pay to non-exempt employees who are required or 
asked by their manager/department to physically respond to an after-hours 
emergency, service call, or facility alarm outside their normal schedule. 

Policy/Procedures 

Call backs occur when a non-exempt employee is called back to perform after-hours 
work (either physically reporting to a work site or performing work remotely). The 
non-exempt employee may be called back by their manager, the General Manager, 
the District’s service provider for the alarm system, or the Montclair Police 
Department. An after-hours emergency, service call, or facility alarm response is 
defined as an unscheduled request made by an appropriate management official for 
an employee to return to work to do unforeseen or emergency work after leaving the 
work location at the end of the employee’s regular shift and before the beginning of 
the next regularly scheduled shift. 

Employees of the Facilities and Operations department, specifically the Facilities 
and Basins Technician position, are required to respond to call-backs and are 
eligible for call-back pay if the Facilities & Operations Manager is unavailable. If the 
Facilities and Basins Technician is unable to respond, then other members of the 
department may be called. 

Non-exempt employees that are not required to respond to after-hours 
emergency/service/alarm calls are not eligible for call-back pay; and should not 
make calls or emails, respond to inquiries, or to perform any off-the clock work. 
Managers should not contact employees before or after their shift, unless it’s an 
emergency or it cannot wait until their shift. 

Hours Worked: 

1. An employee who is called back to work outside the employee’s normal work
schedule will receive pay for the time worked or a minimum of two hours,
whichever is greater. Once the task is complete, the employee shall notify the
manager that the task is complete and apprise him or her of the outcome or
resolution.

a. If the employee receives an additional call within the first two-hour call-out
period, the employee shall then be eligible for four (4) hours of pay, or for
actual time worked, whichever is greater.

b. Travel time is not considered compensable pay when responding to call-
backs, but the employee will be reimbursed for mileage only if it is longer than
the employee’s normal commute. For example, an employee’s normal
commute from home to the work site is 5 miles, but the employee traveled 20
miles to arrive to the work site; the employee may be reimbursed for 15 miles.
However, promptness of response should be prioritized. If the employee is at



 
Policy No.:   62 [NEW SUGGESTED POLICY]          
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 11/13/23 
Subject:  Call-Back Pay for Non-Exempt Employees 
 

a great distance from District Headquarters when they are called, 
management shall attempt to locate an employee that is closer to District 
Headquarters. Asking an employee to drive a long distance shall be avoided 
if at all possible to ensure a prompt response.  

 
Tracking Log:  
1. Employees who are required or asked to respond to after-hours calls, e-mails, 

and texts are required to keep a daily tracking log and submit to their department 
manager for approval. Employees are required to submit the tracking log to their 
manager at the end of the workweek and shall submit the approved log to the 
Administrative Services Manager, no later than the end of each pay period for 
payroll processing. All hours worked will be computed to the nearest one-quarter 
(0.25) hour and entered into the employee’s timecard accordingly. 
 
a. Any call and/or text to a non-exempt employee will trigger Call Back pay and 

managers should avoid contacting employees during their time off unless it’s 
an emergency and the matter can’t wait until the next work shift.  

 
Rate of Pay:  
1. Time worked will be calculated at the employee’s regular rate of pay. Overtime 

compensation is applicable only when the total hours worked exceed 40 hours 
in the workweek and/or for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours on that 
employee’s scheduled eight hours day or in excess of the schedule established 
by the Alternative Work Week Agreement.  

 
Holiday Rules:  
1. In addition to the employee’s regular holiday pay, employees who are asked to 

respond to emergency call-backs that occur during paid holiday leave will be paid 
at a premium rate of time-and-a-half for all hours worked or for a minimum of two 
hours, whichever is greater. Justification must be provided to the department 
director to validate that the call-back is an emergency. 

 
a. Floating holidays do not apply. 

 
Adherence to District Policy:  
1. Employees who respond to after-hours emergencies, service calls, or facility 

alarm calls must adhere to all the District’s policies, including drug and alcohol 
use and testing. If an employee is not fit to work, they should decline to report to 
work, and/or state that they are unable to work. Any violation of company policy 
may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

 



Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 1 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

POSITION FACILITIES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN 

SALARY GRADE 131 

CLASSIFICATION Full-Time, 40 hours per week, Non-exempt under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FSLA). 

DATE JANUARY 11, 2021 NOVEMBER 13, 2023 

ABOUT THE DISTRICT 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) is recognized throughout the state as an 
innovative, fast paced, energetic, and effective water conservation organization.  The District 
is dedicated to the protection of the Chino Groundwater Basin to ensure that the current and 
future water needs of the region will be met.  Its core business is two-pronged: (1) increase 
water supply through groundwater percolation; and (2) decrease water demand through 
conservation education, workforce training, and services. The District provides programs, 
services, and resources to audiences of all ages and backgrounds to cultivate a community-
wide conservation ethic and build regional capacity for water resilience. 

ABOUT THE DEPARTMENT 
The Project Management and Operations Department manages and maintains the District’s 
facilities and is responsible for the planning and execution of District capital projects. 

ABOUT THE POSITION 
Under general supervision, the Facilities and Basins Technician classification performs a 
variety of responsible landscaping grounds, vegetation, and facility maintenance on District 
properties. May also be required to assist the general public, school tours visiting District 
facilities, and/ or offsite outreach events as needed. The Facilities and Basins Technician 
oversees all activities inside a building, making sure that health and safety standards are met 
and arranging for repairs when needed. They report to the Facilities & Operations Manager 
and the two of them work together in tracking expenses and coordinating with external 
vendors. 

SUMMARY/OBJECTIVE 
The Facilities and Basins Technician position establishes duties and coordinates the work of 
Landscape Maintenance I and II staff and Conservation Landscape II staff when assigned, 
performing basin, park, and other district landscape, ground, and structural maintenance 
projects. The Technician oversees the proper implementation of horticultural, landscape, 
equipment, and material inventory policies, standards, and best practices to ensure District 
grounds, landscapes, facilities, structures, equipment, and materials are installed, 
maintained, and replaced to high standards.  

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
The position requires successful completion of the following tasks, duties, and 
responsibilities: 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 2 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

Facilities and Landscapes Maintenance: 
• Coordinates work plan for District landscape employees. 
• Establishes landscape maintenance schedules. 
• Oversees planting and maintenance of vegetation through activities such as 

mulching, fertilizing, watering, mowing, or pruning. 
• Trains workers in tasks such as transplanting, pruning trees or shrubs, finishing 

cement, using equipment, or caring for turf. 
• Provides workers with assistance in performing duties as necessary to meet 

deadlines. 
• Maintains inventory supplies of tools, equipment, or materials to ensure availability of 

sufficient supplies and that items are in usable condition. 
• Operates District tractor to move heavy objects and spray weeds at the District basins. 
• Monitors and repairs irrigation systems. 
• Provides proper upkeep of sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, fountains, planters, or 

other grounds. 
• Inspects assigned areas for insects and rodents. 
• Oversees facility maintenance and repairs throughout District properties.  
• Paints, patches, and provides minor repairs of District properties. 
• Mixes concrete for various projects. 
• Maintains and repairs tools, equipment, and structures. 
• Inspects grounds for hazards and provides reports and requests repairs as necessary. 
• Some janitorial duties may be required. 
• Assists in mixing and dispensing fertilizers, herbicides, and pesticides. 
• Operates vehicles and powered equipment, such as mowers, tractors, chain saws, gas 

clippers, sod cutters, and pruning saws and a variety of hand and power equipment 
commonly used in landscaping and grounds maintenance. 

• Mows and edges lawns using power equipment. 
• Prunes or trims trees, shrubs, or hedges. 
• Cares for established lawns by seeding, mulching, aerating, weeding, grubbing, 

removing thatch, or trimming or edging around flower beds, walks, or walls. 
• Establishes and maintains a plant propagation program.  
• Gathers and removes litter. 

 
Assistance Provided Other Departments: 
• Establishes and maintains cooperative working relationships with co-workers, 

contractors, and the public. 
• Assists with setup of District events.  
• Assists staff from other departments when needed. 
• Coordinates special projects. 

 
Administrative: 

• In concert with the Facilities & Operations Manager, establishes and enforces 
operating procedures and work standards that will ensure adequate performance and 
personnel safety, with particular focus on work in the field. 

• Inspect completed work to ensure conformance to specifications, standards, and 
contract requirements. 

• Plans, coordinates, and leads the work of Landscape Maintenance Workers I and II, as 
well as Conservation Landscape Worker II when assigned to Facilities & Operations 
Department, and supervises crews in the field. 

• Schedules work for crews, depending on work priorities, crew or equipment 
availability, or weather conditions. 

• Participates in the selection, training, and evaluation of personnel. 



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 3 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

• Oversees and maintains inventory, maintenance and operation condition of District 
tools, equipment, and supplies. 

• Assists with the preparation of formal RFPs / RFQs. 
• Assists with solicitation of bids for smaller projects or for budgeting purposes. 
• Prepares requisitions and orders needed materials, parts, equipment and services in 

accordance with District policies. 
• Ensures compliance with applicable rules policies and procedures. 
• Inspects completed work to ensure conformance to specifications, standards, and 

contract requirements. 
• Coordinates special projects. 
• Ensures proper purchasing documentation and inventory. 

 
COMPETENCIES 
Knowledge and experience, skills, and abilities that the employee must possess to effectively 
perform job and succeed in position. 
 

Knowledge and Experience: 
Any combination of education and experience that would likely provide the necessary 
knowledge and abilities is qualifying.  Employee should possess knowledge and experience 
in the following: 

• Practices, techniques, and materials used in general irrigation, gardening, 
maintenance, operation and repair of facilities, grounds, and landscapes. 

• Practice and procedures of weed abatement. 
• Methods and techniques of planting, transplanting, cultivating, pruning, plant 

propagation and maintaining a variety of lawns, ground cover, plants, shrubs, hedges, 
and trees. 

• Spreading seed and fertilizer. 
• Trees and plants Tree trimming chipping, stumping with direction. 
• Knowledge of drought tolerant and native plants and least toxic pesticides and 

techniques highly desirable. 
• Use and application of various fertilizers and herbicides for vegetation control  
• Various irrigation systems. 
• Proper work safety standards. 
• Proper operation and maintenance of various types of equipment used in grounds 

maintenance. 
• Basics of vehicle maintenance. 
• Operating blowers, sweepers, mowers, clippers, sprayers, etc. 
• Safe operation and maintenance of tools and equipment used in grounds 

maintenance. 
• Recycled water regulations and procedures. 
• Basic and accurate arithmetical calculations. 
• Proper grammar and spelling. 

 
Skills  
Employee must possess the following skills: 

• Ability to estimate time and materials for projects. 
• Irrigation system installation and maintenance. 
• Horticulture, specific native and drought-tolerant landscapes. 
• Landscaping techniques and processes. 
• Minor repairs, maintenance work, and troubleshoot at District facilities. 
• Safe operation of motor vehicles, chipper, shredder, and tractor. 
• Proper and safe operation of hand and power tools and equipment. 
• Follow oral and written directions in English. 



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 4 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

• Maintain organized records and files. 
• Basic computer programs, such as Microsoft Office software. 
• Fully developed keyboarding skills.  
• Basic writing skills for writing reports, proposals, and scopes of work. 
• Basic Excel skills with a focus on creating budgets. 

 
Abilities 
Employee must be able to: 

• Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with co-workers, 
contractors, and the public. 

• Work independently, with minimal supervision and be self-motivated. 
• Be committed to safety and mindful of safe use of tools and equipment. 
• Learn to operate District weather station equipment and system. 
• Follow oral and written directions in English.  
• Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with co-workers, outside 

agencies and the public. 
 
SUPERVISION 

• Reports to: Facilities & Operations Manager. 
• Supervises: Plans, coordinates, and leads the work of Landscape Maintenance 

Workers I and II, and Conservation landscape Worker II when in the field, and may be 
assigned to supervise these classifications on a limited basis. 

 
POSITION TYPE AND EXPECTED HOURS OF WORK 

• FSLA Non-Exempt, Full-time, 40-hour work week, with evenings, weekends, and 
holidays occasionally required.  

• The employee is required to respond to after-hours emergencies, service calls, or 
facility alarm calls, in accordance with the District’s Call Back Pay Policy. be available 
for emergency callouts 24-hours a day, 7 days a week to the degree allowable by law. 

 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 

Any combination of education and experience that would likely provide the necessary 
knowledge and abilities is qualifying. 
• Required:   Equivalent to graduation from high school. At least six years of experience 

in the field, including at least two years of “foreman” or “lead worker” experience. 
• Preferred: Certificates from recognized organizations, including institutions of higher 

learning, in pesticides, herbicides, landscaping and irrigation. Some college credits 
and/or certificates in the above subjects and disciplines are highly desired. 

 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 

• Exposure to the sun: 50% to 90% work time spent outside a building and exposed to 
the sun. 

• Work above floor level: Some work done on ladders or other surfaces from 4 to 20 feet 
above the ground. 

• High temp: Considerable work time in hard manual labor in temperatures between 
80-110 degrees. 

• Humidity:  Work in areas with unusually high humidity. 
• Wetness: More than 10% of the work time getting part or all of the body and/or 

clothing wet. 
• Noise:  Occasionally there are unusually loud sounds. 
• Slippery surfaces: Occasional work on unusually slippery surfaces. 
• Oil: Some parts of the body in contact with oil or grease occasionally. 
• Dust: Works in or around areas with minor amounts of dust.     



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 5 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

• Irregular or extended work hours.  Occasionally required to change working hours or 
work overtime. 

• Exposure to chemicals:  Herbicides, fertilizers, pesticides, insecticides, and 
housecleaning chemicals. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
• Operates District vehicles and equipment in collection system construction, 

maintenance, and repair work. 
• Must be able to carry, push, pull, reach, and lift equipment and parts weighing up to 

50 pounds. 
• Operates Equipment including trucks (with and without trailers) lawn mowers, and 

shredders. 
• Operates District tractor to move heavy object and spray weeds. 
• Stoops, kneels, crouches, crawls, and climbs during field maintenance and repair 

work.  
• Works in an environment with exposure to dust, dirt, and significant temperature 

changes between cold and heat. 
• Communicates orally with District staff and public in face-to-face, one-to-one settings. 
• Stands and walks for extended time periods. 
• Hearing and vision within normal ranges with or without correction. 

 
ADDITIONAL ELIGIBILITY QUALIFICATIONS 
• Possession of a valid California Class C Driver’s License and proof of a good driving 

record as evidence by freedom from multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents 
for at least two (2) years duration. 

• Must obtain a QWEL Certification within 1 year of hire. 
• Must obtain a Pesticide Applicators License within 1 year of hire. 
• Must obtain a Recycled Water On-Site Supervisor certification within 1 year of hire. 
• Must satisfactorily meet job requirements for this position for a minimum of 12 months 

before progressing to another level.  
• Arborist certificate from the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA) highly 

desirable. 
• Obtain certificates from recognized organizations in pesticides, herbicides, 

landscaping, and irrigation required. 
 
OTHER DUTIES 
• This job description is not a comprehensive listing of activities, duties or 

responsibilities that are required of the employee. Other duties, responsibilities and 
activities may change or be assigned at any time with or without notice. 

 
 
 



76



Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 1 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

POSITION FACILITIES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN 

SALARY GRADE 131 
CLASSIFICATION Full-Time, 40 hours per week, Non-exempt under the Fair Labor 

Standards Act (FSLA). 

DATE NOVEMBER 13, 2023 

ABOUT THE DISTRICT 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) is recognized throughout the state as an 
innovative, fast paced, energetic, and effective water conservation organization.  The District 
is dedicated to the protection of the Chino Groundwater Basin to ensure that the current and 
future water needs of the region will be met.  Its core business is two-pronged: (1) increase 
water supply through groundwater percolation; and (2) decrease water demand through 
conservation education, workforce training, and services. The District provides programs, 
services, and resources to audiences of all ages and backgrounds to cultivate a community-
wide conservation ethic and build regional capacity for water resilience. 

ABOUT THE DEPARTMENT 
The Project Management and Operations Department manages and maintains the District’s 
facilities and is responsible for the planning and execution of District capital projects. 

ABOUT THE POSITION 
Under general supervision, the Facilities and Basins Technician classification performs a 
variety of responsible landscaping grounds, vegetation, and facility maintenance on District 
properties. May also be required to assist the general public, school tours visiting District 
facilities, and/ or offsite outreach events as needed. The Facilities and Basins Technician 
oversees all activities inside a building, making sure that health and safety standards are met 
and arranging for repairs when needed. They report to the Facilities & Operations Manager 
and the two of them work together in tracking expenses and coordinating with external 
vendors. 

SUMMARY/OBJECTIVE 
The Facilities and Basins Technician position establishes duties and coordinates the work of 
Landscape Maintenance I and II staff and Conservation Landscape II staff when assigned, 
performing basin, park, and other district landscape, ground, and structural maintenance 
projects. The Technician oversees the proper implementation of horticultural, landscape, 
equipment, and material inventory policies, standards, and best practices to ensure District 
grounds, landscapes, facilities, structures, equipment, and materials are installed, 
maintained, and replaced to high standards.  

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
The position requires successful completion of the following tasks, duties, and 
responsibilities: 

ATTACHMENT 3



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 2 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

Facilities and Landscapes Maintenance: 
• Coordinates work plan for District landscape employees. 
• Establishes landscape maintenance schedules. 
• Oversees planting and maintenance of vegetation through activities such as 

mulching, fertilizing, watering, mowing, or pruning. 
• Trains workers in tasks such as transplanting, pruning trees or shrubs, finishing 

cement, using equipment, or caring for turf. 
• Provides workers with assistance in performing duties as necessary to meet 

deadlines. 
• Maintains inventory supplies of tools, equipment, or materials to ensure availability of 

sufficient supplies and that items are in usable condition. 
• Operates District tractor to move heavy objects and spray weeds at the District basins. 
• Monitors and repairs irrigation systems. 
• Provides proper upkeep of sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, fountains, planters, or 

other grounds. 
• Inspects assigned areas for insects and rodents. 
• Oversees facility maintenance and repairs throughout District properties.  
• Paints, patches, and provides minor repairs of District properties. 
• Mixes concrete for various projects. 
• Maintains and repairs tools, equipment, and structures. 
• Inspects grounds for hazards and provides reports and requests repairs as necessary. 
• Some janitorial duties may be required. 
• Assists in mixing and dispensing fertilizers, herbicides, and pesticides. 
• Operates vehicles and powered equipment, such as mowers, tractors, chain saws, gas 

clippers, sod cutters, and pruning saws and a variety of hand and power equipment 
commonly used in landscaping and grounds maintenance. 

• Mows and edges lawns using power equipment. 
• Prunes or trims trees, shrubs, or hedges. 
• Cares for established lawns by seeding, mulching, aerating, weeding, grubbing, 

removing thatch, or trimming or edging around flower beds, walks, or walls. 
• Establishes and maintains a plant propagation program.  
• Gathers and removes litter. 

 
Assistance Provided Other Departments: 
• Establishes and maintains cooperative working relationships with co-workers, 

contractors, and the public. 
• Assists with setup of District events.  
• Assists staff from other departments when needed. 
• Coordinates special projects. 

 
Administrative: 

• In concert with the Facilities & Operations Manager, establishes and enforces 
operating procedures and work standards that will ensure adequate performance and 
personnel safety, with particular focus on work in the field. 

• Inspect completed work to ensure conformance to specifications, standards, and 
contract requirements. 

• Plans, coordinates, and leads the work of Landscape Maintenance Workers I and II, as 
well as Conservation Landscape Worker II when assigned to Facilities & Operations 
Department, and supervises crews in the field. 

• Schedules work for crews, depending on work priorities, crew or equipment 
availability, or weather conditions. 

• Participates in the selection, training, and evaluation of personnel. 



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 3 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

• Oversees and maintains inventory, maintenance and operation condition of District 
tools, equipment, and supplies. 

• Assists with the preparation of formal RFPs / RFQs. 
• Assists with solicitation of bids for smaller projects or for budgeting purposes. 
• Prepares requisitions and orders needed materials, parts, equipment and services in 

accordance with District policies. 
• Ensures compliance with applicable rules policies and procedures. 
• Inspects completed work to ensure conformance to specifications, standards, and 

contract requirements. 
• Coordinates special projects. 
• Ensures proper purchasing documentation and inventory. 

 
COMPETENCIES 
Knowledge and experience, skills, and abilities that the employee must possess to effectively 
perform job and succeed in position. 
 

Knowledge and Experience: 
Any combination of education and experience that would likely provide the necessary 
knowledge and abilities is qualifying.  Employee should possess knowledge and experience 
in the following: 

• Practices, techniques, and materials used in general irrigation, gardening, 
maintenance, operation and repair of facilities, grounds, and landscapes. 

• Practice and procedures of weed abatement. 
• Methods and techniques of planting, transplanting, cultivating, pruning, plant 

propagation and maintaining a variety of lawns, ground cover, plants, shrubs, hedges, 
and trees. 

• Spreading seed and fertilizer. 
• Trees and plants Tree trimming chipping, stumping with direction. 
• Knowledge of drought tolerant and native plants and least toxic pesticides and 

techniques highly desirable. 
• Use and application of various fertilizers and herbicides for vegetation control  
• Various irrigation systems. 
• Proper work safety standards. 
• Proper operation and maintenance of various types of equipment used in grounds 

maintenance. 
• Basics of vehicle maintenance. 
• Operating blowers, sweepers, mowers, clippers, sprayers, etc. 
• Safe operation and maintenance of tools and equipment used in grounds 

maintenance. 
• Recycled water regulations and procedures. 
• Basic and accurate arithmetical calculations. 
• Proper grammar and spelling. 

 
Skills  
Employee must possess the following skills: 

• Ability to estimate time and materials for projects. 
• Irrigation system installation and maintenance. 
• Horticulture, specific native and drought-tolerant landscapes. 
• Landscaping techniques and processes. 
• Minor repairs, maintenance work, and troubleshoot at District facilities. 
• Safe operation of motor vehicles, chipper, shredder, and tractor. 
• Proper and safe operation of hand and power tools and equipment. 
• Follow oral and written directions in English. 



 

Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 4 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

• Maintain organized records and files. 
• Basic computer programs, such as Microsoft Office software. 
• Fully developed keyboarding skills.  
• Basic writing skills for writing reports, proposals, and scopes of work. 
• Basic Excel skills with a focus on creating budgets. 

 
Abilities 
Employee must be able to: 

• Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with co-workers, 
contractors, and the public. 

• Work independently, with minimal supervision and be self-motivated. 
• Be committed to safety and mindful of safe use of tools and equipment. 
• Learn to operate District weather station equipment and system. 
• Follow oral and written directions in English.  
• Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with co-workers, outside 

agencies and the public. 
 
SUPERVISION 

• Reports to: Facilities & Operations Manager. 
• Supervises: Plans, coordinates, and leads the work of Landscape Maintenance 

Workers I and II, and Conservation landscape Worker II when in the field, and may be 
assigned to supervise these classifications on a limited basis. 

 
POSITION TYPE AND EXPECTED HOURS OF WORK 

• FSLA Non-Exempt, Full-time, 40-hour work week, with evenings, weekends, and 
holidays occasionally required.  

• The employee is required to respond to after-hours emergencies, service calls, or 
facility alarm calls, in accordance with the District’s Call-Back Pay Policy.  

 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 

Any combination of education and experience that would likely provide the necessary 
knowledge and abilities is qualifying. 
• Required:   Equivalent to graduation from high school. At least six years of experience 

in the field, including at least two years of “foreman” or “lead worker” experience. 
• Preferred: Certificates from recognized organizations, including institutions of higher 

learning, in pesticides, herbicides, landscaping and irrigation. Some college credits 
and/or certificates in the above subjects and disciplines are highly desired. 

 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 

• Exposure to the sun: 50% to 90% work time spent outside a building and exposed to 
the sun. 

• Work above floor level: Some work done on ladders or other surfaces from 4 to 20 feet 
above the ground. 

• High temp: Considerable work time in hard manual labor in temperatures between 
80-110 degrees. 

• Humidity:  Work in areas with unusually high humidity. 
• Wetness: More than 10% of the work time getting part or all of the body and/or 

clothing wet. 
• Noise:  Occasionally there are unusually loud sounds. 
• Slippery surfaces: Occasional work on unusually slippery surfaces. 
• Oil: Some parts of the body in contact with oil or grease occasionally. 
• Dust: Works in or around areas with minor amounts of dust.     



Facilities and Basins Technician pg. 5 
Position approval date: 01/11/2021 
Approved by: Board of Directors 

• Irregular or extended work hours.  Occasionally required to change working hours or
work overtime.

• Exposure to chemicals:  Herbicides, fertilizers, pesticides, insecticides, and
housecleaning chemicals.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
• Operates District vehicles and equipment in collection system construction,

maintenance, and repair work.
• Must be able to carry, push, pull, reach, and lift equipment and parts weighing up to

50 pounds.
• Operates Equipment including trucks (with and without trailers) lawn mowers, and

shredders.
• Operates District tractor to move heavy object and spray weeds.
• Stoops, kneels, crouches, crawls, and climbs during field maintenance and repair

work.
• Works in an environment with exposure to dust, dirt, and significant temperature

changes between cold and heat.
• Communicates orally with District staff and public in face-to-face, one-to-one settings.
• Stands and walks for extended time periods.
• Hearing and vision within normal ranges with or without correction.

ADDITIONAL ELIGIBILITY QUALIFICATIONS 
• Possession of a valid California Class C Driver’s License and proof of a good driving

record as evidences by freedom from multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents
for at least two (2) years duration.

• Must obtain a QWEL Certification within 1 year of hire.
• Must obtain a Pesticide Applicators License within 1 year of hire.
• Must obtain a Recycled Water On-Site Supervisor certification within 1 year of hire.
• Must satisfactorily meet job requirements for this position for a minimum of 12 months

before progressing to another level.
• Arborist certificate from the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA) highly

desirable.
• Obtain certificates from recognized organizations in pesticides, herbicides,

landscaping, and irrigation required.

OTHER DUTIES 
• This job description is not a comprehensive listing of activities, duties or

responsibilities that are required of the employee. Other duties, responsibilities and
activities may change or be assigned at any time with or without notice.



82



ITEM NO. 10 
 

 

 

 

FIRST QUARTER CORRESPONDENCE JULY – SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

83



F i r s t  Q u a r t e r  
C o r r e s p o n d e n c e :
J u l  –  S e p t  2 0 2 3

84



Kudos

Today a guest came in with his Grandson. First time visitor. 

When he was leaving, he commented on how much his grandson enjoyed it. But he had 

also mentioned that he noticed the rock circle in the back of the garden and commented 

that he thought it would be a wonderful place to bring some of his friends to sit in the 

rock circle and do a bible study. He thought it had a very meditative ambiance to it. 

-    Comment given to Judy at front desk about garden, (8/2)

It’s so helpful to be walked through these two different approaches, from start to finish. 
Yours are the best videos I’ve found on how to actually do this! [ . . . ] Big learning curve for 
me, but I think I’ve finally gotten the hang of it! Is there a similar organization to yours in 
the San Gabriel Valley? I’m in Pasadena and would love to attend an in person training or 
event on Waterwise irrigation. Thank you again for these great resources!

- Comment on CBWCD YouTube Video “Install Drip Irrigation Like a Pro”, user terrireyes295

85



Social Media Interactions

86



Social Media Interactions

87



Social Media Interactions

1st CBWCD Reel
83 likes
16 shares

2nd CBWCD Reel
49 likes
6 shares

88



Social Media Interactions

89



Social Media Interactions

90



Social Media Interactions

Instagram post 
talking about 
Hurricane 
Hilary and all 
the water 
captured by 
CBWCD 
Percolation 
Basins

91



Social Media Interactions

92



Social Media Interactions

93



Social Media Interactions

94



Social Media Interactions

95



In the News

Page 1

96



In the News

97



In the News

Page 1

98



In the News

99



Translation: I like this park a lot, it’s small and very pretty, it 
has a lot of plants and a small turtle. A llama (too) but they 
took him away. He was very pretty =(

100



ITEM NO. 11 
 

 

 

 

FIRST QUARTER METRICS FOR JULY – SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

101



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Waterwise Community Center Visitors  

Total Q1 visitors to the Waterwise Community Center are compiled using visitors from the following 
programs: 

Program July Aug Sept PROGRAM TOTALS 
WCC Lobby Walk Ins 358 386 446 1,190 
CBWCD Workshops 79 69 74 222 
Professional Workshops 0 0 46 0 
CBWCD Events 0 111 0 0 
Non-CBWCD Booked Events 0 83 49 132 
Tours 0 0 0 0 
Compost Giveaways (cars) 82 89 40 211 
Youth Education Programs 0 0 0 0 
ALL VISITORS - MONTHLY TOTALS 519  738   655   1,912  

 

 
   *No visitors due to COVID-19 pandemic 

 

1,747 

2,029 

-   -   

1,087 

1,912 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

FY 18/19 FY 19/20 *FY 20/21 *FY 21/22  FY22-23  FY23-24

Waterwise Community Center Visitors
Q1: July-Sept

2018-2023

102



FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 

First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 

Outreach & Communications - Social Media Metrics 
• Social Media Engagements: Public shares, likes and comments on CBWCD posts on Instagram and Facebook
• Social Media Followers: Total Instagram and Facebook followers

QUARTER 1 
FY 

19/20 
FY 

20/21 
FY 

21/22 
FY 

22/23 
FY 

23/24 

% Change 
FY 23/24 – 
FY 22/23 

Social Media Engagement 2,406 2,429 2,139 1,384 1,568 13% 
Social Media Followers 2,946 3,367 3,932 3,590 4,188 17% 

Outreach & Communications - Newsletter Metrics 
• Drop and Educator News Subscribers

FY 2023-24 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Newsletter Subscribers 9,164 

103



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Website Metrics 
 

  

104



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Facebook Metrics 
Date Range Comparison: Q1 July-September 2023 to Previous quarter (April-June 2023) 

 
  

105



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Instagram Metrics 
Date Range Comparison: Q1 July-September 2023 to Previous quarter (April-June 2023) 

 
  

106



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

In-Person and Online Workshops 

 
 
Workshop attendance in Q1 totaled 222 participants, tracking closely with attendance in years 18/19 and 19/20. FY 
20/21 performance reflects record participation in online-only workshops during COVID. Staff believes the decline in 
attendance compared to 22/23 reflects a possible cyclical trend in general reduced interest that occurs after “good rain 
years” following drought cycles. 
 
Other than our regularly offered “Introduction” workshop, most of the District’s current workshop offerings focus on an 
in-depth three hour “how-to” format on different topics. This format is popular when large numbers of community 
members are committed to taking on landscape projects and are looking for detailed information on how to get projects 
successfully completed. 
 
 In response to our suspected reasons for the shift in workshop attendance, staff is considering a partial format shift for 
winter and spring workshops, trying to replace some of our in-depth and longer workshops with more introductory and 
shorter workshops that take place entirely in the demonstration garden. This format might be more accessible and 
appealing to those just beginning to think about going waterwise in their home landscapes and may help us engage a 
wider total audience. With the availability of our online workshop recordings, participants in introductory workshops 
who want to learn more could follow up with more in-depth online content. 
 
  

108



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

In-Person and Online Workshops 

Some comments from Fiscal Year 23/24 Q1 workshop participants: 
 
DIY Landscape Design for California Native Gardens: 
 
“Good info… I plant to take more classes to modify 3,000 sq. ft. of front yard turf. This helped me start smart.” 

- Etiwanda Resident 
 
“Wonderful instructor. His cadence and enthusiasm kept the workshop fun and interesting. We will be attending more 
workshop and going to YouTube and your website. Thank you.” 

- Ontario Resident 
 
Renovating Lawn Sprinklers for Waterwise and California Native Gardens: 
 
“Terrific! As a novice, I have much to learn, and each class delivers!” 

- Rancho Cucamonga Resident 
 
“Great Info and great instructor. He is so easy to listen to and not fall asleep.” 

- Ontario Resident  
 
Removing Your Lawn the Right Way: 
 
“Enjoyed the class. It was very informative. Currently sheet mulching but interested in the solarization method that I 
learned about today.” 

- Ontario Resident 
 
“Very informative…. I came as someone who is interested in creating a more native / desert type garden and was not 
expecting to find all the different types of garden designs possible through the website provided during the workshop.” 

- South Gate Resident 
  

109



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

YouTube Videos 

 
Q1 YouTube views remained significant, and on par with past years, though not as strong as FY 22/23 performance. Staff 
is in a planning phase for a new round of videos and have been researching best practices in YouTube publishing to 
inform the planning, recording, and editing of future videos to increase viewership.  
 
Q1 saw the publication of two new videos highlighting DIY native bee habitat features community members can build to 
add to their waterwise gardens. 
 
This project was planned and led by Conservation Programs Intern Kaylee Denberger, who was recently hired on as the 
District’s part-time receptionist. The videos can be directly accessed at cbwcd.org/pollinator DIY and are the first in an 
in-progress series staff is working on that will include additional videos on pollinator garden design, top plants for 
pollinators, hummingbirds, and songbirds, DIY bird baths, and more. 
 

 
  

110



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Waterwise Garden Planner Website 

 
 
Q1 saw strong user numbers for the Waterwise Garden Planner website. Last FY staff was unsure if the reduced usage 
seen was due to a temporary search engine optimization issue related to the website redesign and URL change, reduced 
interest in home gardening post-COVID, or a combination of the two. 
 
With the rebound in user numbers this FY, it appears most likely that the issue was temporarily reduced search engine 
optimization, which the District’s web designers warned would happen with renaming and changing the URL of the site 
from inlandvalleygardenplanner.org to waterwisegardenplanner.org.  They predicted this impact to be temporary, and 
all involved agreed that this move was still the right one to further reinforce the District’s brand and to maximize the 
site’s utility to the region. Staff is happy to see site statistics rebound. 
 
The peak usership in July was due to an online advertising campaign that brought approximately 10,000 additional users 
to the site that month. However, staff was able to use website use analytics to understand that although the advertising 
campaign brought users to the site, those users were less engaged with the site than other users who either discovered 
the site though search results or navigated directly to the site by entering the web address into their browser. Staff’s 
analysis is that while the campaign did have some positive impacts, ultimately, it makes more sense to prioritize ongoing 
outreach budget on other priorities, including increasing visitation to the Waterwise Community Center. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Landscape Efficiency and Audit Program  
(Sprinkler Check Up and Landscape Water Efficiency Consultation) 

 
 
FY 23/24 has seen relatively low demand for the Landscape Evaluation and Audit Program from the community 
compared to many past years, despite ongoing promotion of the program. 
 
Staff believes this may be a combination of lowered general interest in conservation due “drought fatigue” followed by a 
winter of significant rainfall and the prediction of an El Nino weather pattern. Reduced interest in conservation 
programs provided by other agencies, including those which offer completely free installation of water saving devices 
including upgraded irrigation controllers has also been noticed, so this may be part of a wider trend. 
 
In Q1, there has also been reduced interest in audit services from the CII sector, possibly partially due to reluctance to 
request this service during a non-functional turf irrigation ban, as many, many properties are still watering their non-
functional turf. Due to these sensitivities, District staff is clear with potential participants that we do not function to 
enforce and particular regulation, rather this service advises and helps CII sites prioritize pathways to water conservation 
and future regulatory compliance. Staff is currently in the process of providing audits on some CII properties, which will 
be reflected in Q2 metrics.  
 
 
  

112



 

FY 23-24 Quarterly Metrics Report 
 
First Quarter Metrics | July-September 2023 
 

Community Volunteer Program 
 

 
 
The District’s Community Volunteer Program started back up in September after a break for the summer heat. 
Volunteers helped groom the native plantings in the park to get ready for the fall festival and packed our favorite new 
give-away, branded native wildflower seeds. This popular give-away is very affordable though the District buying seeds 
by the pound and, along with volunteer help, stamping and packing seeds into individual seed pack envelopes. The 
volunteers had a great time, and loved envisioning how their efforts will help community members sow their own mini-
superblooms! 
 

113


	0 - Brd Mtg Agenda - 2023.11.13
	PRESENTATIONS
	1. WATERWISE GARDEN & PUMPKIN FESTIVAL – MAIA DEAN, COMMUNITY PROGRAMSMANAGER
	2. FINAL REPORT ON THE NEW WEBSITE – SCOTT KLEINROCK, CONSERVATION PROGRAMSMANAGER

	CONSENT CALENDAR
	3. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 9, 2023
	4. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR SEPTEMBER 2023
	5. APPROVE AB 1234 DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT
	6. APPROVE AB 1234 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT REPORT

	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	7. REPORT ON BOARD WORKSHOP RESEARCH RESULTS
	ATTACHMENT 1: CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD PRIORITIES REPORT - MAY 2023

	8. APPROVE THE UPDATED BOARD CLERK JOB DESCRIPTION
	ATTACHMENT 1: BOARD CLERK JOB DESCRIPTION - REDLINE
	ATTACHMENT 2: BOARD CLERK JOB DESCRIPTION  - FINAL

	9. APPROVE POLICY NO. 62 – CALL-BACK PAY AND UPDATED JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THEFACILITIES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN
	ATTACHMENT 1: POLICY NO. 62 - CALL-BACK PAY
	ATTACHMENT 2: FACILITES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN JOB DESCRIPTION - REDLINED
	ATTACHMENT 3: FACILITIES AND BASINS TECHNICIAN JOB DESCRIPTION - FINAL


	INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	10. FIRST QUARTER CORRESPONDENCE JULY – SEPTEMBER 2023
	11. FIRST QUARTER METRICS FOR JULY – SEPTEMBER 2023

	CLOSED SESSION
	12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION




